2‘;}2 2 A=

ASTRAZENECA PLC

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
- AND
- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2002

LR

SEQHUKBRRE 0 185
EOX o
COMPANIES HOUSE g ( 1]

EUY
COMPANIES HOUSE 2107103







44
Directors’ Report

AstraZeneca PLC is the holding company for
a group of subsidiaries whose principal
activities are described in the Operational and
Financial Reviews on pages 8to 28 and 30 to
43, which are incorporated in this report by
reference, Principal subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and their locations
are given onpage 112.

The Company’s dividend for 2002 of $0.70
(43.2 pence, SEKS.20) per Ordinary Share
amounts to a total dividend payment to
shareholders of $1,206 million.

The Directors believe that the Company and
its subsidiaries have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and therefore continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the Financial Statements.

Changes in the Company's Ordinary Share
capital during 2002, including details of the
allotment of new shares under the
Company’s share plans, are givenin Note 38
to the Financial Statements.

Board of Directors

Details of members of the Board at 31
December 2002 are set out on pages 6
and?7.

Board Changes

Claes Wilhelmsson, Executive Director, retired
from the Board in June 2002. The Company
announced in November 2002 that Ake
Stavling, also an Executive Director, would be
leaving the Company at the end of January
2003,

Lars Ramqvist, Non-Executive Director,
retired from the Board in April 2002 with effect
from the end of the Annual General Mesting.
Also at the Annual General Mesting,
shareholders elected Jane Henney and John
Buchanan as Non-Executive Directors. Dr
Henney was first appointed to the Beard in
September 2001. DrBuchanan's
appointment was effective romthe end of the
Annual General Meeting in April 2002,

Re-election of Directors

Other than Ake Staviing, who will have left the
Company, all of the Directors will retire under
Article 65 of the Company’s Articles of
Assogciation at the Annual General Meeting in
Aprif 2003 and are presenting themselves for
re-election. All are recomrnended by the
Board for re-glection.

Mandatory Shareholding for Directors
The Company's Articles of Association require
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each Director to be the beneficial owner of
Orclinary Shares in the Company with an
aggregate nominal value of $126 (500
shares). Such holding must be obtained
within two months of the date of the Director's
appointment. All of the Directors comply with
this requirement and full details of each
Director's interests in shares of the Company
are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Reporton pages 491054,

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s Annual General Meeting will
be held on 30 April 2003. The principal
meeting ptace will be in London. There will be
one satelite meeting place in Stockholm.

Corporate Governance

Combined Code

Throughout 2002, the Company has applied
all of the principles of good govemance in
Part 1, Section 1 of the Combined Code
published by the Hampel Committee on
Corporate Governance and appended to the
Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority, The
way in which these principles have been
appliedis described below.

Throughout 2002, the Company has
complied with all of the provisions of the code
of best practice in Part 2, Section 1 of the
Combined Code with two exceptions. These
are provision A.2.1 concerning the
appointrment of a senior Non-Executive
Director, with which the Company has
complied since March 2002, and provision
B.1.7 relating to the notice period of Executive
Directors’ service contracts. in March 2002,
the Board appointed Sir Peter Bonfield as the
senior Non-Executive Director.

During 2002 the service contracts of the
Executive Directors provided for a notice
period of two years, However, in January
2003, al of the Executive Directors agreed to
reduce the notice periods of thelr service
contracts to one year. For new Executive
Directors, the Board would aint to negotiate a
one year notice period. In exceptional
circumstances, the initial notice period may
be for longer than one year. In those
circumstances, the Board would explain to
shareholders the reasons why it believed a
longer notice period was necessary and it
would be the Board's intention that the notice
period shouid be reduced to one year
subsequently.

Full details of the service contracts and
remuneration of the Company's Executive
Directors are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 49 to 54.
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The US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
AstraZeneca PLC American Depositary
Shares are traded on the New York Stock
Exchange and the Company is subject 10
the reporting and other requirements of the
US Securities and Exchange Commission
applicable to foreign issuers. The US
Sarbanes-Oxley Act came into force at the
end of July 2002. As aresult of its New York
listing, the Company is subject to those
provisions of the Act applicable to foreign
issuers.

Many of the rules implementing the Act are
cuirently being written and proposed by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, Asa
result, the detailed provisions of the Act are
likely to become effective during 2003.

The Company will comply with those
provisions of the Act applicable to foreign
issuers as and when they become effective.
The Board takes the view that the Company
aready has a sound comporate govermance
framework, good processes for the accurate
and timely reporting of its financial position
and results of operations and an effective
and robust system of internal controls.
Consequently, the Company’s approach to
compiiance with the Act principally involves
the development and adjustment of the
existing corporate governance framework
and associated processes concerning
reporting, intermal controls and other
relevant matters. In particular, some
additional work has been undertaken to
ensure that the Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer are in a position to
provide the certifications required by the
Actin respect of the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 20-F for the year ended

31 Decemnber 2002,

The New York Stock Exchange

In August 2002, the Corporate Accountability
and Listing Standards Cornmittee of the New
York Stock Exchange filed new, draft
corporate governance rules with the US
Securities and Exchange Commission. The
draft rules are currently under review by the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The
Company, as a foreign issuer with American
Depositary Shares listed on the New York
Stock Exchange, is obliged to disclose any
significant ways in which its corporate
govermarice practices differ frorm the rules.

The Company has reviewed the draft rules
and befieves that, in most areas, its corporate
governance practices are consistent with the
draft rules and/or the principles behind the
draft rules, with two significant exceptions.




The draft rules state that non-execLitive
directors must have regular scheduled
meetings without the directors involved in the
management of the company present.
Currently, other than meetings of those Board
committees comprised only of Non-Executive
Diregtors, the Company’s Non-Executive
Directors do not hold formal meetings without
the Executive Directors of the Company
present.

Under the draft rules, listed companies’ audit
committees are given increased authority and
responsibility. The Company's current
corporate governance practices regarding
the Audit Committee are not consistent in ail
respects with the draft rules. However, as
described below, it is anticipated that
changes to certain of those practices will be
introduced during 2003 in the context of the
US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, The
Company anticipates that any such changes
madie would bring the Company's corporate
governance practices in this asea more
closely in line with the proposed New York
Stock Exchange rules.

Disclosure Policy

The Company’s Disclosure Policy, approved
by the Board in October 2002, provides a
framework for the handling and disclosure of
price sensitive information. A Disclosure
Committee comprising the Chief Financial
Officer, the Group Secretary and Saolicitor and
the Vice-President, Corporate Affairs, mests
regularty. The role of the Disclosure
Committee is to assist and inform the
decisions of the Chief Executive concerning
price sensitive information and its disclosure.

Recent Developments

During the first haif of 2003, the Company will
review two significant new proposals in the
UK conceming comarate govemance: the
report of Derek Higgs, ‘Review of the Role
and Effectiveness of Non-Executive
Directors’, and that of Sir Robert Smiith, ‘Audit
Committees: Combined Code Guidance’,
both publishedin Januaty 2003, The reparts
both propose changes te the Combined
Code appended to the Listing Rules of the UK
Listing Authornity. Subject to completing its
review of the proposals, the Company
expects to comply with any changes to the
Combined Code resulting from the reports’
proposals.

Board Structure and Processes

Board Composition, Responsibilities and
Appointments

The Board includes a balance of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors. The majority of
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Board members are Nor-Executive

Directors. The differing roles of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors are
Clearly delineatad, both having fiduciary duties
towards shareholders. However, Executive
Directors have direct responsibility for
business operations whereas the Non-
Executive Directors have a responsibility to
bring independent, objective judgement to
bear on Board decisions.

The Board considers that all of the Non-
Executive Directors are independent of
management and free from any business or
other relationship which could materially
interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement. However, the Board
acknowledges that independence, as it
applies to non-executive directors, s hot
defined in a way which is uniformly accepted
by all reguiatory bodies, codes of governance
or best practice, stock exchanges or
organisations representing institutional
investors, Two of the Company’s Directors
{Hakan Mogren, Executive Deputy Chairman
and Marcus Wallenberg, Non-Executive
Director) are also members of the Board of
Directors of Investor AB, a company which, at
31 Decernber 2002, had a 5.04% holding in
the Ordinary Shares of the Cormpany. This
holding represents a significant proportion of
Investor AB's overallinvestment portfolio.
Marcus Wallenberg is the Chief Executive
Officer of Investor AB. Additionally, Dy Mogren
and Ema Mdller, Non-Executive Director, are
Directors of the Marcus and Marianne
Wallenberg Foundation and the Knut and
Alice Wallenberg Foundation respectively,

The Board sets the Company's strategy and
policies and monitors progress towards
meeting its objectives. This includes regular
reviews of the Company’s financial
performance and critical business issues. The
Board normially meets six times a year.

Thereis an established and transparent
procedure for appointments of new directors
10 the Board whichis operated by the
Nomination Committee. All of the Directors
refire at each Annual General Meeting and
may offer themseltves for re-election by
shareholders.

Chief Executive and the Senior Executive
Team

The Chief Executive, Sir Tom McKillop, has
delegated authority from, andis responsible
10, the Board for directing and promating the
profitable operation and development of the
Company, consistent with the primary aim of
enhancing iong term shareholder value.
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The Chief Executive is responsible to the
Board for the management and performance
of the Company’s businesses within the
frarmewaork of Company policies, reserved
powers and routine reporting requirements.
He s obliged to refer certain major matiers
{definedin the formal delegation of the Board's
authority) back to the Board, The roles of the
Board, the Board's committees, the
Chairrnan, the Executive Deputy Chainman,
the Chief Executive and the Senior Executive
Tearn are docurmented, as are the Company’s
delegated authorities and reserved powers,
the means of operation of the business and
theroles of corporate functions.

The Chief Executive has established and
chairs the Senior Executive Teamn. While the
Chief Executive retains full responsibility for
the authority delegated to hirm by the Board,
the Senior Executive Team is the vehicle
through which he exercises that authority in
respect of the Company’s business {including
Safick Health Care, Astra Tech and Marlow
Foods).

The other members of the Senior Executive
Team are Ake Staviing, Executive Director
funtil 31 January 2003}, Jonathan Symonds,
Chief Financial Officer; Bruno Angelici,
Executive Vice-President, Europe, Japan,
Asia Pacific and ROW; David Brennan,
Executive Vice-President, North Armerica
and President and GEOQ, AstraZeneca LP,
Jan Lundberg, Executive Vice-President,
Discovery Research; John Patterson,
Executive Vice-President, Product Strategy
& Licensing and Business Development,
Martin Miclklasson, Executive Vice-President,
Development; Bamie Thorpe, Executive Vice-
President, Operations; and Tony Bioxham,
Executive Vice-President, Human Resources.
Dr Lundberg and Dr Nicklasson succeeded
Dr Withelmsson who retired in June 2062,

The Senicr Executive Team nomially meets
once a month to consider and decide all
major business issues. It also usually reviews
those matters which are of asize or
importance to require the attention of, or
which aré reserved 1o, the Board before such
matters are submitted to the Board for review
and decision,

Each business function is subject to an
annual budget and target-setting process
including forecasts for the following two years
together with a sensitivity and risk analysis,
quarterty updates of the forecast for the
cument year and reguiar reporting.
Pertormance reviews are undertaken in each
part of the business regularty. The Company's
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quarterly business performance
management systermn uses a broad range of
measures that link directly to the achievement
of key business priorities. Treasury operations
are centralised, operate within defined limits
and are subject to regular reporting
requirements and Audit Committee reviews.

Audit Committee, Internal Controls and
Management of Risk

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Commitiee are

Kar von der Heyden (Chairman of the
Committee}, John Buchanan, Jane Henney,
Dame Bridget Ogilvie and Marcus Wallenberg.
They are all Non-Executive Directors.

The core remit of the Audit Committee is to
review and report to the Board on the annual
and other published financial reporting carried
out by the Company, its accounting policies,
the scope and audit programimes of its
internal and external auditors and any
material issues arising from these audits,

the effectiveness of its systems of financial
reporting and internal financial controls and
the framework for risk management, with
particular emphasis on financial risks.

The Audit Committee met four times in 2002
andis currently scheduled to meet at least
four times in 2003, All of the members of the
Audit Committee attended each meeting in
2002. The Chairman of the Board, a Non-
Executive Director, attended two of the
meetings held in 2002.

During 2002, the business considered and
discussad by the Audlit Committea included
the financial disclosures contained in the
Company's annual and quarterly reporis to
sharsholders and other interested parties;
various accounting matters raised in the
context of the financial disclosures, including
reports from management and the external
auditor concerning those accounting
matters; reports frorm management and the
internal audit function on the Company’s risk
profile and the assessment and management
of risk; reports from management, the internal
audit function and the extemal auditor o the
effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal controls and, in particular, internal
financial controls; proposals from the internat
audit function and the external auditor about
their audit programmes for 2002; areport
from the Company’s treasury function albout
its operations and approach torisk
management; the amount of audit and non-
audit fees of the external auditor; the
appeintrment of a new Chief Internal Auditor;
and the impact of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act
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of 2002 on the Company and, in particular, on
the operation of the Audit Cominittee and it
relationship with the external alditor. More
information about the work of the internal
audit function and the Company's external
auditor is given below.

Atthe scheduled meeting of the Audit
Committee held at the end of January 2003,
the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial
Officer presented to Audit Cormpnittee
members their conclusions follpwing the
evaluation of the effectivencss ofthe
Company’s disclosure controlsfand
procedures required by tterm 18(a) of

Form 20-F. Based on their evalliation, the
Chief Executive and the Chief Ainancial Officer
concluded that the Company raintains an
effective system of disclosure controls and
procedures.

There have been no significant thanges inthe
Company'sinternal controls orpther factors
that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of their pvaluation.

During the year, in line with its nprmal practice,
the Audit Committee also held & number of

private meetings, without mand
present, with both the Compa

Company’s external audit firm.
of these meetings was to faciiita
open discussions between thelAudit
Committee members and the Chief Intemal
Auditor and the external lead alidit partner,
independient of the main sessigns of the Audit
Committee attended by the Chyef Financial
Officer and the Group Financiaj Gontroller,

Internal Controls and Managpment of Risk
The Board has overall responsipility for the
Company's system of internal gontrols which
aims to safeguard shareholders' investments

the business and for publication is accurate,
refiable and fairly presents the financial

respensible for reviewing the: ef
the system of internal controls.
designad to provide reasonabie assurance of
effective operations and complance wi

laws and regulations, althoughiany system of
internal controls can only provigie reasonable,
not absolute, assurance againgt material
misstaterment or loss.

Since the publication in Septernber 1999 by
the Institute of Chartered Accolintants in
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England and Wales of the Turnbull Report,
‘Internal Control: Guidance for Directors on
the Combined Code', the Directors have
continued to review the effectiveness of the
Group's system of non-financial controls,
including operational and compliance
controls, risk management and the
Company’s high level internal control
arangements. These reviews have included
an assessment of intemal controls, andin
particular internal financial controls, by the
internal audit function, management
assurance of the maintenance of control and
reports from the extemal auditor on matters
identified in the course of its statutory audit
waork. Akey part of these reviews is an annual
‘letter of assurance’ process by which
responsible managers confirm the adeguacy
of their systems of internal financial and non-
financial controls, their compliance with
Company policies (including those relating to
safety, health and the environment), local laws
and regulations (including the industry’s
regulatory requirements) and report any
control weaknesses identified in the past
year. The Directors believe that the Company
maintains an effective embedded systern of
internal controls and complies with the
Turmbull Report guidance.

The Company views the careful management
of risk as a key management activity. A
significant part of all of its activities is to deliver
oppoertunities by managing business fisks in
a simple, flexible and sustained way which is
consistent with the Company’s values. These
risks, which may be strategic, operational,
reputational, financial or environmental,
shauld be understood and visible and the
business context should determine the level
of acceptabie risk and control.

Much of the Company’s work in the area of
risk management is faciiitated by the Risk
Advisory Group consisting of representatives
from each business function. itsroleis
advisory and is to assist senior management
to identify and assess the main risks faced by
the Company'’s business in a co-ordinated
manner, to assess, identify and document the
Company's risk profile and to ensure that the
business focuses on critical business issues.
It is chaired by the Chief Financial Officer and
reports twice a year to the Senior Executive
Team. The Risk Advisory Group's reforts on
the Company's risk profile are reviewed by
both the Audit Cormmittee and the Board.

Under the auspices of the Risk Advisory
Group, the Company has developed and is
establishing an integrated risk management
framework with the aim of ensuring that the




business understands the key risks it faces,
especially cross-functional risks, has an
embedded risk management approach to all
ofits activities, links risk management to
business performance reporting and seeks
contiruous improvement in the management
of risk by sharing best practice throughout the
organisation.

Code of Conduct

The policy of the Company is that all of its
subsidiaries and their employees observe
high standards of integrity and act with due
skill, care, diigence and faimess inthe
conduct of business. The Company's
management recognises that such standards
make a significant contribution to the overall
control environiment and seeks, by its words
and actions, to reinforce them throughout the
business. In particular, all employess are
required to comply with the letter and spirit of
the AstraZeneca Code of Conduct and with
the detajled standards issued in support of it
The AstraZeneca Code of Conduct is set out
on page 137. The current version of the Code
ot Conduct was first published in June 2000
and wilf be reviewed during 2003. The review
will include consideration of the relevant
requirements of the US Sarbanes-Oxfey Act
of 2002, such as those concerning a code of
ethics for senior financial officers.

Group Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (GIA) is an independent
appraisal function which derives its authority
from the Board through the Audit Commiittee.
Its primary role is to provide reasonable and
objective assurance about the adequacy and
effectiveness ofthe Company’s financial
control framework and risk management.

It also assists senior management with its
responsibility to improve the processes by
which business risks are identified and
managed and to report and advise on the
proper and effective use of resowrces.

GlA seeks 1o discharge the responsibilities set
down in its charter by reviewing the
processes which ensure that business risks
are effectively managed; reviewing the
financial and operational controls which help
to ensure that the Company's assets are
property safeguarded fromlosses, including
fraud; reviewing the controls which help to
ensure the reliability and integrity of
management information systems; reviewing
the processes which ensure compliance with
corporate objectives, policies and procedures
and external legislation and reguiation {other
than those relating to safety, health and the
environment and regulatory compliance
which are the responsibility of other audit
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furictions); and on an ad hoc basis, reviewing
that value for money is obtained. GlA also
acts as a source of constructive advice and
best practice.

External Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting on 30 April 2003 for the re-
appaintment of KPMG Audit Plc, London as
auditor of the Company.

The external auditor has undertaken various
non-audit work for the Company during
2002, Mare information about this work and
the fees paid by the Company for it are set out
inNote 36 to the Financial Statements on
page 107. The external auditor is not
engaged by the Company to carry out any
non-audit work on which it might, in the
future, be reguired to express an audit
opinion. The Audit Committee has
determined poiicies as to what non-audit
work can be undertaken by the Company's
external auditor, Any itern of non-audit work
proposed to be undertaken for which its fees
may exceed $500,000 must be approvedin
advance by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee also monitors the ievel of audit
and non-audit fees on a quarterly basis.

The US Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is likely
to lead to ¢changes in the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor, such as
greater involvement of the Audit Commiittee in
managing the relationship and the pre-
approval by the Audit Cormmittee of all non-
audit work. Certain provisions of the Act are
also likely to lead to changes inhow the
external auditor conducts its business, such
as the mandatory rotation of the principal
audit partners,

Other Board Committees

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration
Committee are Sir Peter Bonfield (Chairman
of the Committee), John Buchanan and Ema
Mdller. They are all Non-Executive Directors.

The remit of the Remuneration Committeeis,
primarily, to recommend for decision by the
Board the fundamental remuneration policy
for the Company and to ensure the proper
operation of alt plans for employees involving
the Company's shares. More particularly, it
makes specific proposals in respect of the
remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and the Company’s
most senior executives.

Further information about the membership
and work of the Remuneration Committee

Directors’ Report

47

and the Company's remuneration policy
and practice is set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 49 to 54.

Nomination Committee

The members of the Nomination Committes
are Percy Bamevik {Chairman of the
Committee), Hakan Mogren, Sir Peter
Bonfietd and Jane Henney. With the
exception of Dr Mogren, they are all Non-
Executive Directors.

The remit of the Nomination Committegis,
primarily, to make proposals to the Board for
any new appointrments as Directors of the
Cormpany.

Shareholders

Inits financial reporting to shareholders and
other interested parties by means of annual
and quarterty reports, the Board aimsto
present abbalanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s financial

position and prospects.

The Company maintaing a corporate website
containing a wide range of information of
interest to institutional and private investors:
www.astrazeneca.com.

The Company has frequent discussions with
instituional shareholders on a range of issues
affecting its performance. Theseinciude
meetings following the announcement of the
annual results with the Company’s largest
institutional shareholders on an individua!
basis. In adgition, the Company responds to
individual ad hoc requests for discussions
from institutional shareholders.

All shareholders, including private investars,
have an opportunity to put questions to
members of the Board on matters relating to
the Cornpany's operation and performance at
the Annual General Meeting.

Employees

The Company maintains an open
managernent style and involves its
empioyees both in daily decisions which
affect thern and longer term matters. The
Company is fully committed to keeping ali
of its employees informed about their work
unit and the wider business, as wellas
discussing the implications.of major business
changes and cther relevant matters. Key
business priorities are communicated
throughout the organisation and form part
of the basis for the Cornpany’s employee
incentive plans. Details of employees’ share
plans appear inNote 33 to the Financial
Statements.




48

Directors’ Report continued

in fine with legal requirements and cultural
standards, more formal national and business
level employee consultation arvangements
exist in some countries, including the UK.
There is a forum for empioyee consultation at
European level, chaired by the Chief
Executive, in which employee representatives
from 19 countries participate. The Company
also has a variety of constructive relationships
with trade unions across its worldwide
operations including formal recognition and
active dialogue where appropriate.

The Company believes that every employee
should be treated with the same respect and
dignity. It values the rich diversity and creative
potential of people with differing backgrounds
and abiliies and encourages a culture of equal
opportunities in which personal success
depends on personal merit and performance.
Itis Company policy that there should be no
discrimination against any person for any
reason. All judgements about people for the
purposes of recnuitment, development and
promotion are made solely on the basis of
their ability and potential in relation to the
needs of the job. Every manager is
responsible for implementing this policy.

Itis Company policy that people with
disabilities should have the same
consideration as others with raspect to
recruitment, retention and persenal
development. Depending on their skills and
abilities, people with disabilities enjoy the
sarme career prospects as other employees
and the same scope for realising potential.
The Company also takes all reasonable steps
to ensure that its working environments can
accommodate special needs.

Other Stakeholders

The Company aims to set, promote and
maintain high standards of corporate
responsibility wherever it operates. Dame
Bridget Ogilvie, a Non-Executive Director, is
the Board member responsible for this area
and oversees the work of a cross-functional
committee. The Company has established
systems to monitor its performance. Policies
and standards relating to corporate
responsibiiity are maintained and widely
communicated within the organisation. In
2002, the Company was again included in the
FTSE4Good and the Dow Jones
Sustainability Indices. The Cormpany
publishes and sends to shareholders a
separate Corporate Responsibility Summary
Report. More detailed information about the
Company’s approach to this area of its
business can be found on its website:
www.astrazeneca.com.

" periods.
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ltis not Company policy formal
with the Confederation of Briti

agree appropriate payment t
suppliers when agreeing the te

subject to their compliance,
terms of payment. The total

creditors at the balance sheet
equivalent to 83 days’ average
equivalent disclosure is provi

by the end of 2002. This prog
completed ahead of schedule in the second
quarter of 2002. In January 2002, the
Company announced an additional $2 billion
re-purchase programme to be completed by
the end of 2003.

During 2002, the Company pufchased 28.4
million of its own Ordinary Shares with a
nominal value of $0.25 each foran aggregate
cost of $1,190 million. Following the purchase
of these shares, they were all cgncefled as
required by applicable Englishi law. This
number of shares represents 1;65% of the
Company's total issued share gapital at 31
December 2002.

Since the beginning of the re-plirchase
prograrmmein 1999, the Company has
purchased for cancellation in tgtal 65.6 million
of its own Ordinary Shares with{a nominal
value of $0.25 each for an aggregate cost of
$2,805 million, This number of
represents 3.82% of the Company's total
issued share capital at 31

The Company continues to
controls in-respect of all aspects of the share
re-purchase programime to engure
compliance with English law the Listing
Rules of the UK Listing Authorily. In particular,
the Company’s Disclosure Corfimittee meets
to ensure that the Company not
purchase its own shares during prohibited

At the Annual General Meeting on 30 Aprit
2003, the Company will seek ajrenewal of its
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current permission from shareholders to
purchase its own shares.

Political Donations

Under the UK's Political Parties, Elections and
Referendums Act 2000, shareholder authority
is required for political donations to be made
or political expenditure to be incumed by the
Cormpany or its subsidiaries in the European
Union. Neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries made any donations or incuered
any expenditure in 2002 in the European
Unionin respect of which shareholder
authority or disclosure in this Directors’
Report is required under the Act. Neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries intend to make
any such donations orincur any such
expenditure in the European Unionin the
foreseeable future. However, the Act defines
‘political organisation’ widely and, for
example, interest groups or lobbying
organisations concerned with the review of
government policy or law reformmay be
caught by the definition,

To enable the Company to continue to
support such organisations without
inadvertently breaching the Act, aresclution
will, in the same way as last year, be proposed
at the Annual General Meeting on 30 Apri
2003 authorising the Company to make
donations or incur expenditure in the
European Union up to an aggregate imit of
$150,000.

In 2002, AstraZeneca’s US legal entities
made contributions amounting in aggregate
to $275,000 to state and national political
party committees and to campaign
commitiees of various state candidates
affliated with the major parties. This total
includes $54,500 in national political party
committee donations made prior to the
implementation of the US Bipartisan
Campaign Reform Act. All contributions were
made only where allowed by state and federal
law. American nationals exercised decision-
making over the contributions and the funds
were not provided or reimbursed by any non-
US corporation.

On behalf of the Board

G H R Musker

Group Secretary and Solicitor
30.January 2003
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

At the Annual General Meeting on 30 April
2003, aresohution will be proposed to
approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration
Committee are Sir Peter Bonfield (Chairman
of the Committee), John Buchananand Ema
Méller, They are all Non-Executive Directors,
Sir Peter became Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee in Apnl 2002 in
succession to Lars Ramagvist following Dr
Ramqvist's retirement from the Board, Dr
Bucharian became a member of the
Remuneration Commities following his
election as a Non-Executive Director at the
Annual General Meeting in April 2002.

The remit of the Remuneration Committee is,
primarily, to recommend for decision by the
Board the fundamental remuneration policy

-for the Company and to ensure the proper

=operation of all plans for employees involving

—the Compary’s shares. More particulary, it

imakes specific proposals inrespect of the

wemuneration packages of individual
sCxecutive Directors and the Company’s most
=senior executives.

The Remuneration Committee met six times
uring 2002. Atits request, Peter Brown,
ice-President, Global Compensaticn and
fits, attended a number of the meetings
provided advice and services which
terially assisted the Remuneration
mmittee during 2002. in doing so, Mr
rown drew On various sources of data
oncerning directors” and executives’

ies, bonus levels and other incentives
ncluding general pharmaceutical industry
eports and surveys, as well as surveys
Especifically camied out for the Company.

[ These included certain surveys prepared for
e Company by Towers Perrin. During 2002,
[ Towers Perrin also provided consultancy and
Eshare plan administration services to the
Coompany.

L)verall Remuneration Policy and Purpose
[ The Company is committed to maintaining

5 dynamic performance culture inwhich
=very employee champions the growth of
Shareholder value, is clear about the Company's
Dbjectives, knows how their work impacts

N those objectives and that they will benefit
Frarm achieving high levels of performance.

[ The Board has confirmed that the Company's
Sverafl remuneration policy and purpose is:

= to attract and retain people of the quality
necessary to sustain the Company as

one of the best pharmaceutical
companies in the world; and

> tomotivate them to achieve the level of
performance necessary to create
sustained growth in shareholder value,

In order to achieve this, remuneration policy
and practice is designed:

> toclosely align individual and team
reward with business performance at
each level;

> toencourage employees to performto
their fullest capacity;

> foencourage employees to align their
interests with those of shareholders;

> tosupport managers' responsibility to
achieve business performance through
people and for them to recogrise
superior performance, in the short and
longer term;

> tobeasiocally focused and flexible as is
praciicable and beneficial;

> 1o be competitive and cost-effective in
each of the relevant employment
markets; and

> tobeasintemally consistent asis
practicable and beneficial taking due
account of market need.

The cost and value of the components of the
remuneration package are considered as a
whole and are designed:

> toensurea proper balance of fixed and
variable performance related
components, linked to short and fonger
term objectives; and

> toreflect market competitiveness taking
account of the total value of all of the
benefit componenits,

The benefit components contained in the
total rernuneration package are:

> annual salary — based on conditions in the
relevant geographic market, with the
provision to recognise, in addition, the
value of individuals’ sustained personal
performance, resulting from their ability
and experience;

> adhoc rewards —special payments and
other measures available to reward
individuals (other than Executive
Directors) and teams following a particular
and outstanding business contribution;

> short term bonus — a lump sum payment
related to the targeted achievernent of
identified business drivers and, where
appropriate, personal perforrmance goals,
measured over a year within a specific
ptan;
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> share participation - various plans
provide the opportunity for employeesto
take apersonal stake in the Company’s
wealth as shareholders; and

> gther benefits such as holidays, sickness
benefit and pensions which are cost-
effective and compatible with the relevant
national welfare armangements.

The way in which these elements are
combired and applied varies depending, for
example, on market need and practice in
varnious countries.

For Executive Directors, the individual
components are:

> annual salary - the actual salary for each
of the Executive Directors is determined
on behalf of the Board by the
Bemuneration Committee; these salaries
reflect the experience and sustained
performance of the individuals to whom
they apply, as judged annually by the
Remuneration Committee, taking
account also of market competitiveness;

> short term bonus - the Deputy Chairman
and the Chief Executive are entitied to
bonuses related solely to the
achievernent of the targeted performance
of earnings per share; other Executive
Directors are entitied to annual bonuses
related to the achieverment of both the
targeted performance of eamings per
share and the achievement of functional
measures relevant to their particular area
of responsibility; the bonus payable for
Executive Directors is on a scale of 0-
100% of salary and 50% of salary is
payabie for the achieverment of target
business performance; 80% of the bonus
relates to the achievement of the earnings
per share target and 20% to the individual
measures;

> longer term bonus — Executive Directors
are also rewarded for improvement in the
share price performance of the Company
over a period of years by the grant of
share options; the grant of options under
the AstraZeneca Share Option Planis
supervised by the Remuneration
Committee which also determines
whether any performance targets will
apply to the grant and/or axercise of
options; the exercise of options previcusly
granted under the Zeneca 1994
Executive Share Option Schemeis
currently subject fo the performance
condition that before any exercise,
earnings per share must grow by at least
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the increase in the UK retail prices index
plus 3% per annum over a continuous
three year period following grant; and

> pension arrangements - these are
described in more detall below.

Other customary benefits {such asa car and
health benefits) are also made available. In the
UK, this happens by way of the Executive
Directors’ participation in the Company’s
fiexible henefits arrangerments which apply to
the vast majonity of the Company's UK
employees. A similar programme was
introduced in Sweden in January 2003.

Executive Directors’ Service Confracts
Ag stated in the Directors’ Report, during
2002 the Company did not comply with
provision B.1.7 of the code of best practice in
Part 2, Section 1 of the Combined Code
published by the Hampet Committee on
Comorate Governance and appended to the
Listing Rules of the UK Listing Autharity,
relating to the notice period of Executive
Directors’ service contracts.

During 2002, the service contracts provided
for a notice period of twio years, However, in
January 2003, all the Executive Directors
agreed to reduce the notice periods of their
service contracts to one year. For new
Exscutive Directors, the Board woukd aim to
negotiate a one year notice period. In
exceptional circumstances, the initial notice
pericd may be for longer than one year. In
those circumstances, the Board would
explain to shareholders the reasons why it
belisved a longer notice period was
necessary and it would be the Board's
intention that it should be reduced to one year
sutisequently,

the event of the termination of an Executive
Director’s service coniract, deperjding upon
the circumstances the Company may be

- liable to provide compensation tojthe

Executive Director equivalent to
which he or she would have recelied during
fhe contractual notice period. The Company's
policy in the event of the terminatipn of an
Executive Director’s service contract is to
avoid any liakility to the Executive{Director in
excess of his or her contractual ehtitlement
and aim to ensure that any liability is mitigated
to the fullest extent possible,

The Company anhounced in November 2002
that Ake Staviing, Executive Di
be leaving the Company at the e
2003. Mr Stavling will receive compensation
from the Company, to be paid orja monthly
basis, equivalent 1o two years bage annual

salary.

Position of the Non-Executive|Directors
None of the Non-Executive Dil

share options. No pension con
made on thelr behalf.

under the AstraZeneca Share
and ensures that, on every

confritbwution of each participant is fully taken
into account when determining the number of
shares to be put under option and the
numiber of options to be granted. In respect of
the grants of options under the Flan in March
and August 2002, the Remuneration

Directors” Remuneration Report

remained strong and concluded a grant of
options was justified. The Remuneration
Committee also received assurances from
each member of the Senior Executive Team
that the participants for whom they were
recommending a grant of options had
achieved the appropriate level of
performance.

in respect of the grants of options under the
Planin March 2002 to each individual
Executive Director, the Remuneration
Committee considered the performance
factors described above and also received an
appraisal from the Chief Executive in respect
of the performance of each Executive
Director, In each case, the Remuneration
Committee concluded a grant of options was
justified,

Although the Company dees not use total
shareholder retumn (TSR} as a measure of
performance for its share plans, a graphis set
out on page 53 illustrating the Company’s
TSR performance over the last five years
against the FTSE 100 index. )

External Appointments

With the specific approval of the Board in
each case, Executive Directors may accept
external appointments as non-executive
directors of other companies and retain any
related fees paid to them.

Directors’ Emoluments in 2002
The Directors’ emolurments in 2002 are:
disciosed onpages 51 and 52.

Directors’ Interests in Shares

Details of the Directors’ interestsin the
Company’s Ordinary Shares are disclosed on
pages 53 and 54.

Committee considered the fact that business
At the time of the Annual General Mesting targets had been metin 2001, Nexium sales Audit
on 30 April 2003, the unexpired term of continued to grow strongly, the Respiratory, The Directors’ emoluments in 2002 and the
Executive Directors' service contracts will Central Nervous Systern and Oncology details of the Directors' interestsin the
be a maximurn of one year. The detaits of product portfolios continued to grow strongly, ~ Company’s Ordinary Shares disciosed on
the Executive Directors' individual service key products were progressing well through pages 51 t0 54 have been audited by the
confracts are set out in the table below. In late stage development and the/R&D pipeline  Company's external auditor.
Details of Executive Directors’ Service Contracts
Executive Director Date of service contract Unexpired term at Notice period

31 December 2002

Hakan Mogren 14,12.98 Two years* One year
Sir Tom McKillop 11.01.96 Two years* One year
Jonathan Symonds 20.05.98 Two years* Oneyear
Axe Staviing 28.06.93 Leaving the Company on 31.01.03
* Reduced to one year subsequently
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Directors’ Emoluments in 2002

The aggregate remuneration, excluding pension contributions, paid to or accrued for all Directors and officers of the Company for senvices in all
capacities during the vear ended 31 Decermber 2002 was $16 million (including $373,000 to the Chairrnary). Remuneration of individual Directors
was as follows:

Salary Taxable Total Total Total
and fees Bonuses benefits Cther 2002 2001 2000
$'030 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Percy Bamevik 373 - - - 373 368 385
Hakan Mogren 1,032 660 1464 172% 2,010 1,623 1,564
Sir Tom McKiliop 1,277 816 3 112* 2,208 1,918 1,917
Ake Staviing 674 405 1013 66° 1,246 1,047 934
Jonathan Symonds 774 450 9 1241 1,357 1,199 1,245
Sir Peter Bonfield 68 - - - 68 56 bg
John Buchanan Ag - - - 49 - -
Jane Henney 60 - - 30# 80 13 -
Karl von der Heyden 70 - - - 70 60 63
Erma Maller 63 - - 307 93 81 69
Dame Bridget Ogilvie 63 - - 30¢ 93 81 69
Marcus Wallenberg 63 - — - 63 56 59
Former Directors
»Claes Wilhelmsson 683* 211 10 - 904 938 1,074
KLars Ramqvist 23 - - - 23 60 63
Cthers - - - - - 34 1,466
Total 5,272 - 2,542 269 564 8,647 7534 8,967

™ Relates to relocation alowances

Payment for pension related tax liabilities

Fees for AstraZeneca Scientific Advisory Board

Includes settlement on retirement of accrued holiday entitternent
Includes provision for accommeodation in the UK

Payment for accormnmedation related tax liabilities

* Part year only

remuneration of Directors is or was in the case of former Directors (with minor exceptions) established and paid in either Swedish kronor
Claes Wilhelimsson) or pounds sterfing {other Directors) and has been converted into US doliarsin the table above at the average exchangerate

GBP/AUSD  SEKAUSD

D000 0.65 8.91
=001 0.68 10.79
22002 0.67 9.86

The movement of exchange rates affects the year on year comparison of the dollar amounts.

Fome Directors and officers were also granted options to subscribe for Ordinary Shares under the Company's share option plans. Detalls of
Share options granted 10, and exercised by, Directors and the aggregate of gains realised on exercised opfions in the year are given on page 54.

o Director or officer has a family relationship with any other Director or officer.

Wransactions with Directors
During the year there were no material recorded transactions between the Company and the Directors.

[iransactions with Former Directors

—ollowing his retirement as a Director in June 2002 and pursuant to the terms of an agreement dated 31 March 1999, Claes Wilhelimsson
burchased an apartment in Stockholm from the Company. The price paid for the apartment, the Swedish kronor equivalent of $963,000 at the
Bverage exchange rate for 2002 set out above, was an arm's length market value, as determined by independent third party valuations of the
Droperty carmried out in 2002,
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Directors’ Emoluments in 2002 (continued)

Executive Directors’ SirTomMcKillop  Jonathan Symonds|  Hékan Mogren AkeStaving  Claes Wihelmsson
Pension Arrangements $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
(per annumy}
Defined Benefit Arrangements
1. Accrued pension at 1 January 2002 745 267, 873 356 583
2. Increasein accrued pension

during year as a resuit of inflation 12 5 19 8 7
3. Adjustment to accrued pension as a resuit

of salary increase relative to inflation 23 6 - 49 65
4, Increasein accrued pension as a

result of additional service 28 1§ - 44 -
5. Accrued pension at 31 December 2002 803 294 821 4571 655"t
6. Employee contributions during year - 29 - - -
7. Transfer value of accrued pension

at 31 December 2001 12,364 2,343 7,784 3,042 5,482
8, Transfer value of accrued pension

at 31 December 2002 14,480 2,30( 8,465 4,188 6,031*
9. Change in transfer value during

the period less employee contributions 2,116 )] 681 1,146 5489
10. Age at 31 December 2002 5912 4330y 58312 5712 63312
11. Pensionable service {years) 332 2247 30312 20142 353"

T Accrued pension payable between the age of 60 and 65. Once 65 the pension payable is reduced by 2/7ths {or 28.6%) from the figures shown.
* Atretirement on 30 June 2002

Pensions are payable to Directors in sither Swedish kronor or pounds sterfing. For pase of understanding, the above table has been presented
using the exchange rates for 2002 set out on page 51.

UK Executive Directors’ Pension Arrangements
Sir Tom McKillop is a rember of the Comipany’s main UK defined benefit pension plan. The normal pension age under this plan is 62. However, a
member's accrued pension is available from age 60 without any actuarial reduction. In addition the accrued pension is available, unreduced,
from age 57 if the Company consents to a request for early retirement and from age 50 if the retirement is at the Company’s request.

On death in retirement, the accrued pension shown is guaranteed payable for the first five years of retirement and then reduces 1o two-thirds of
this amount should there be a surviving spouse or other dependant, Any member may choose higher or lower levels of survivor's pensions at
retirernent, subject to Inland Revenue fimits, in retun for an adjustment to their own pension of equivalent actuarial value. Pensions are also
payable to dependent children. In the event of a senior emiployes becoming incapacitated from performing his work then a pensionis payable
immediately as if such person had reached normal retirement age (subject to a maximum of 10 years additional service), based on current
pensionable salary. In the event of death prior to retirement, dependants are entitled to a pension of two-thirds of the pension that would have
been eamedhad such person remained in service to age 62 plus a capital sum of four times pensionable pay. Pensions in payment are increased
annually in line with inflation, as measured by the retail prices index, up to a maximum of 5%.

In respect of UK Executive Directors whose pensionable eamings are capped by the eamings fimitimposed by the Finance Act 1989,
unapproved defined contribution schemes are made avallable. Currently, only Jonathan Symonds is affected by this imit. The Company has
agreed to pay annually 50% of base salary in excess of the statutory earnings cap for the pension and associated tax liability, with the intention of
providing equivalence of benefits with non-capped UK Directors. If this does not grovide equivalence, the Company has agreed to make up the
difierence. The benefits derived from equivalence are shown above as if the schemne was a defined benefit arrangement. The Company
contribution in 2002 in respect of the pension element was $171,000.

Swedish Executive Directors’ Pension Arrangements
Neomnally, Swedish Executive Directors participate in the collectively bargained ITH pension plan, which provides pensions, dependants’
pensions and Jump sums on death in service. In respect of those Swedish Directdrs or former Directors, namely Hakan Mogren, Ake Staviing and
Claes Wilhefmsson, whose pensionable eamings are or were in excess of the ings imitimposed by the Swedish Communal Tax Law
{Kommunalskattelagen), supplementary pension commitrments are mads, The y has agreed to pay 70% of pensionable salary from age
6010 age 65 and 50% of such eamings from age 65. The ITP provisions are inclufied in this additional commitment. Paid in pension capital may
also be used in the event of retiterent or termination before the age of 60. In the gvent of long term lliness then a pension is payable immediately
as if such person had reached the nommal retirement age, of 70% of current pensionable salary. On death in retirement the accrued pension
shown Is payable to a suniving spouse or other dependant. In the event of death pricr to retirement the accrued pension shown is payableto a
sunviving spouse or other dependant plus a capital sum of three times pensi salary less $100,000 i rarried or two times pensionable
salary less $100,000 if not.
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araph Showing Total Shareholder Retum

[he UK Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 require the inclusion in the Directors’” Remuneration Report of a graph showing total
shareholder return (TSR) over a five yvear period in respect of a holding of the Company’s shares, plotted against TSR in respect of a hypothetical
Jolding of shares of a similar kind and number by reference to which abroad equity market index is calculated. This ilustrates the Company’s
I'SR performance against the broad equity market index selected and is required even though the Compary does not use TSR as a measure of
serformance for its share plans. For the purposes of this graph, set out below, we have selected the FTSE 100 Index as the appropniate index.

Graph showing total shareholder retum
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Jirectors’ Interests in Shares

“heinterests at 31 December 2002 or on date of retirement of the persons who on that date were Directors (inciuding the interests of their
amilies) in shares and debentures of AstraZeneca PLC are shown below, all of which were beneficial except as otherwise stated. None of the
Directors has a beneficial interest in the shares of any of the Company’s subsidiaries.

o Interestin interestin
heldintrust, at Net heldintrust, at ntustat infrustat
1Jan 2002 shares 31Dec 2002 1.Jan2002 31 Dec2002
Or appontment acoired/ arregignation  orappontment orresignation
date {dksposed) date date date
Percy Bamevik 100,000 - 100,000 - -
Hakan Mogren 65,706 268 65,974 9,966 10,234
Eir Tom McKillop 74,443 - 74,443 16,824 13,424
mke Staviing 8,929 210 9,139 8,041 8,157
monathan Symonds 14,314 (486) 13.828 10,774 7,788
Fir Peter Bonfield 500 - 500 : - -
mohn Buchanan - 500 500 - -
Eane Henney 500 - 500 - -
L ar von der Heyden 20,000 - 20,000 - -
| ma Mdller 2,718 - 2,718 - -
Pame Bridget Ogitvie 500 . - 500 - -
Harcus Wallenberg 74,504 - 74,504 - -

‘ormer Directors

Elaes Wilhelmsson 27,462 1,059 28,521 8,774 8.897
Ers Ramquist 500 - 500 - -

E:: Birector or senior executive beneficially owns, or has options over, 1% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company, ror do they have
erent voting rights to other shareholders.

hares held in trust above include both long term incentive bonus shares appropriated under the Zeneca Executive Performance Bonus
=cherne and also shares allocated on the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals, in respect of executive share options held on

0 Novermnber 2000, and which have not yet been released. In respect of the latter, the shares generally will not become beneficially owned by
irectors untit 13 Novernber 2003
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Directors’ Interests in Shares {continued)

The interests of Directors and former Directors in options to subscribe for Ordingl
the AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme, together with options
following table:

rmn 20-F 2002 Directors' Remuneration Report

inued

ry Shares of the Company, which include options granted under
hranted and exercised during the year are included in the

Exercise  Market price

No. of shareg price at date of First date Last date

under option per sharet exercise exercisable®  exercisable™
Hakan Mogren At1Jan 2002 137,417 2047p 13.12.02 28.038.11
Granted 41,924 3487p 28.03.05 27.0312

At 31 Dec 2002 179,345 3073p 13.12.02 27.03.12
Sir Tom McKillop At 1 Jan 2002 259,256 2332p 05.04.97 28.03.11
Granted 79,813 3487p 28.03.05 27.0312

At 31 Dec 2002 339,064 2604p 05.04.97 27.03.12
Aie Stavling At1Jan 2002 84,197 2862p 26.05.02 28.03.11
Granted 27,020 3487p 28.03.05 27.03.12

At 31 Dec 2002 111,217 3014p 26.05.02 27.03.12
Jonathan Symonds At1Jan2002 130,561 2678p 01.10.00 28.03.11
Granted 29,815 3487p 28.03.05 . 27.03.12

At 31 Dec 2002 160,376 2828p 01.10.00 27.03.12
Claes Wilhelmsson At1Jan2002 92,593 2855p 26.05.02 28.03.11
‘ Granted 27,824 3487p 28.03.05 27.03.12

At 30 Jun 2002 120,417 . 3001p 26.05.02 26.06.04

T Exercise prices at 1 January and 31 December are weighted averages. )
* First and last exercise dates of groups of options, within which periods there are shorier exer:

se periods.

¥ Amends the Company's announcement dated 2 April 2002 stating option granted over 27,988 shiares which resulted from an exchange rate discrepancy.

In addition to the above the following Directors or former Directors held options Under the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan which were
converted into options over AstraZeneca shares on completion of the merger based on an exchange ratio of 0.5045 AstraZeneca options for

each Astra option held. No further options have been or will be granted under thg scheme:
Hakan Mogren At1.Jan 2002 37,480 359SEK 06.04.99 23.01.06
Sold 12,400 208.285EK 345SEK 06.04.99 03.01.03
At 31Dec 2002 25,080 389.688EK 06.04.99 23.01.06
Ake Staviing At1.Jan 2002 16,193 369SEK 06.04.99 23.01.06
Sold 3,654 298.28SEK 5338EK 06.04.99 03.01.03
Sold 4,395 316.138EK 533SEK 06.04.99 02.01.04
" At 31 Dec 2002 8,143 429.388EK 06,04.99 23.01.06
Claes Wilhelmsson At 1Jan 2002 17,164 36568EK 06.04.99 23.01.06
' Sold 4630 298.288EK 5185EK 06.04.99 03.01.03
Sold 4,395 316.135EK 518SEK 06.04.99 00.01.04
At 30 Jun 2002 8,143 06.04.99 23.01.06

The aggregate amount of gains made by Directors on the exercise of share optig
2000 $0.8 milion} and the gains made by the highest paid Director were $nil {20(
London Stock Exchange at 31 December 2002 was 2220 pence and the range
of shares trading on the Stockholm Stock Exchange at 31 Decernber 2002 was

429.385EK

ns during the year amounted to $0.4 million 2001 $0.02 milion,
1$13,000, 2000 $nif). The market price of shares trading on the
curing 2002 was 1799 pence to 3625 pence. The market price
[BOBSEK and the range during 2002 was 2555EK to 54 1SEK.

The Register of Directors’ interests {which is open to inspection) contains full detgils of Directors' shareholdings and options to subscribe for

Ordinary Shares.

On behaif of the Board
G HR Musker

Group Secretary and Solicitor
30 January 2003
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Preparation of the Financial Statement
Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are required by UK company
law to prepare for each accounting period
financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company as at the end of the accounting
period and of the profit orloss for that pericd.
In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are required to select and apply
consistently suitable accounting policies and
make reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates. Applicable accounting
standards also have to be followed and a
statement made to that effectin the financial
statements, subject 1o any material
departures being disclosed and explainedin
the notes to the financial statements. The
Directors are required to prepare the financial
staternents on a going concem basis unless it
is inappropriate to presume that the Group
will continue in business. The Directors are
responsible for ensuring proper accounting
records are kept which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Compary and enable them to
ensure that the financial staternents comply
with the Companies Act 1985. They are also
responsible for taking reasonable steps to
safequard the assets of the Company and
prevent and detect fraud and other
imegularities.

AstraZeneca Annual Beport and Form 20-F
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Memioers

of AstraZeneca PLC

We have audited the Financial Staternents on
pages 58 10 122. We have also audited ihe
information in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report that is described as having been
audited.

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
section 235 of the Companies Act 1885. Owr
audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by
law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiiity to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors
and Auditor

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and Form 20-F and the
Oirectorg’ Remuneration Repart. As
described on page 56 this includes
responsibility for preparing the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable UK
law and accounting standards; the Directors
have also presented additional information
under US requirements, Our responsibilities,
as independent auditor, are established inthe
UK by statute, the Auditing Practices Board,
the Listing Rules of the Financial Services
Authority, and by our profession’s ethical
guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether
the Financial Staternents give a true and fair
view and whether the Financial Statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985, We also report to you if, inour
opinion, the Directors’ Reportis not
consistent with the Financial Staternents, if
the Company has not kept proper accounting
records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for
our audit, or ifinformation specified by law
regarding Directors’ remuneration and
fransactions with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the statement on page 46
reflects the Company’s compliance with the
seven provisions of the Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules,
and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all risks
and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control
procedures.

We read the other information contained in
the Annual Report and Form 20-F, including
the corporate governance statement and
cansider whether it is consistent with the
audited Financial Statements. We consider
iheimpfications for our report if we lbecome
aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the Financial
Statements,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Audlting Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An auditincludes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made
by the Directors in the preparation of the
Financial Statements and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group's circurnstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We pianned and performed our audit so asto
obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance that the Financial
Statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report 10 be audited are free
from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or other iregularity or error. in
forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presertation of
irformation in the Financial Statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited.

Opinion
in our opinion

> the Financial Statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at
31 December 2002 and of the profit of
the Group for the year then ended; and

> the Financial Statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report iobe
audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act
1985.

30 January 2003

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Reqistered Auditor

8 Salisbury Square
London ECAY 888

The above opinion is provided in comphance
with UK requirements. An opinion complying
with auditing standards generally accepledin
the US will be included in the Annual Report
on Form 20-F filed with the US Securities and
Exchange Comrrission.

Generally accepted accounting principles in
the UK vary in certain significant respects
from generally accepted accounting
principles in the US, Application of generally
accepted accounting principles in the US
would have affected results of operations for
each of the years in the three-year period
ended 31 December 2002 and consofidated
sharehoiders’ equity at 37 December 2002
and 2001, to the extent sumrmarised on
pages 1130122,
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Group Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 December

Continuing  Exceptional 2002
operations items Total
. Notes $m $m $m
Turnover: Group and share of joint ventures 18,032 - 18,032
Less: Share of joint venture turnover (191) - {191)
Group turnover 3 17,841 - 17,841
Operating costs 3 (13,728) (350) (14,078)
Other operating income 3 243 - 243
Group operating profit 3 4,356 (350) 4,006
Share of operating (loss) of joint veniures and associates 4 - - -
Profits less losses on sale, closure, or demerger of operations 5 - - -
Profits on sale of fixed assets 5 - - -
Dividend income 1 - 1
Profit on ordinary activities before interast 4,357 {350 4,007
Net interest 6 30 - 30
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4,387 {350) 4,037
Taxation 7 {1,177 - (1,177}
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 3,210 {350) 2,860
Attributable to minorities 24) - 24)
Net profit for the financial year 3,186 (350) 2,836
Dividends to shareholders _
Cash 8 (1,206)
Dividend in specie — demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals 8 -
Profit/{loss) retained for the financial year 1,630
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share before
exceptional items 9 $1.84 - $1.84
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (basic) 2 $1.84 ($0.20) $1.64
Eamings per $0.25 Ordinary Share {diluted) 9 $1.84 {$0.20) $1.64
Weighted average number of
Qrdinary Shares in issug {milions) 9 1,733
Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 31 December -
2002
Notes “$m
Net profit for the financial year 2,836
Exchange adjustments on net assels 22 1,106
Translation differences on foreign currency borrowings 22 6
Tax on translation differences on foreign currency borrowings 22 {2}
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the financial year 3,946
Prior year adjustment [page 62) {200)
Total recognised gains and losses since the last annual report 3,746

$m means millions of US dollars
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Continuing  Exceptional 2001 Continuing Discontinued  Exceptional 2000
operations items Total operations  operations iterns Total
(restaéerg) (restag_nd) (restagarg) (resta&erg) (restagarg) (restagnd) (resta'§$reﬂ)
16,405 - 16,405 15,778 2,289 - 18,077
{183) - {183) {195} - - (195)
16,222 - 16,222 15,583 2,209 - 17,882
(12,434) (202) (12,636) {11,822} {1,996) (322) (14,140)
368 - 368 ' 223 43 - 268
4,156 {202} 3,954 3,984 346 (322) 4,008
- - = (12 Co- {137) (149)

- - - - - (150) (150

- 10 10 - - L. -

'8 - 8 3 - - 3
4,164 (192) 3,872 3,975 346 {608} 3,712
105 - 105 135 - - 135
4,263 {192} 4077 4110 346 {6009) 3,847
(1,214 54 (1,180} (1,453) {135) 28 {1,560)
3,055 (138) 2917 2,657 211 (581) 2,287
(11) - (t1) ©) (1) - (19
3,044 {138 2,906 2,648 210 681 2,277
(1,225) (1,2386)

- ' (1,669

1,681 ' ‘ ‘ (628)

$1.73 - $1.73 $1.50 $0.12 - $1.82
$1.73 {$0.08) $1.65 $1.50 “$0.12 {$0.32) $1.30
$1.73 {$0.08) $1.65 $1.50 $0.12 ($0.32) $1.30
1,758 1,768

2001 20tOO
(resta}sfamd) {resta 3;.?1}

2,806 ' 2,277

{602) ' {870)

18 _ 154
© {2

2,416 1,519
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Financial Staterments

Group Balance Sheet
at 31 December
2002 2001
Notes $m (r%ta?md)
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 11 6,597 5,409
Goodwill and intangible assets 12 2,807 2,700
Fixed asset investments 13 46 23
9,450 8,132
Current assets
Stocks 14 2,593 2,402
Debtors 15 4,845 4,139
Short term investments 16 3,962 3,118
Cash 30 726 705
12,126 10,364
Total assets 21,576 18,496
Creditors due within one year
Short term bomowings 17 {202) 214)
Current instaiments of loans 19 (314) (107)
Other creditors i8 {7,699) (6,159)
(8,215) (6,480)
Net current assets 3,911 3,884
Total assets less current Habilities 13,361 12,016
Creditors due after more than one year
Loans 19 (328) (635)
Other creditors 18 (34) (152)
{362) (787)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 21 {1,773} {1,600)
Net assets 11,226 9,629
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 38 429 436
Share premium account 23 403 334
Capital redemption reserve 23 16 9
Merger reserve 23 433 433
Other reserves 23 1,440 1,470
Profit and loss account 23 8,451 6,904
Sharehoiders’ funds - equity interests 22 11,172 9,586
Minority equity interests 54 43
Sharehoiders' funds and minority interests 11,226 9,629

The Financial Statements on pages 58 to 122 were approved by the Board of Direy

Sir Tom MeKillop
Director

Jonathan Symonds
Director

ctors on 30 January 2003 and were signed on its behalf by:
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Statement of Group Cash Flow
for the year ended 31 December

2002 2001 2000
Notes $m $m $m
Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash inflow from trading operations 24 5,686 4130 4,992
Qutflow related to exceptional items 25 {93) (368) (809)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5,693 3,762 4,183
Dividends received from joint ventures - - -
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 142 232 180
Interest paid {96) 84) {145)
Dividends received - 8 -
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to minority interests (1) - (16}
35 156 19
Tax paid (795) (r92) (648)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Cash expenditure on tangible fixed assets 11 {1,340) (1,385) {1,347)
Cash expenditure onintangibie assets and goodwiill (268) {197) (113)
Gash expenditure on fixed asset investments {1) {5} Q)
Disposals of fixed assets 66 44 37
{1,543) (1,543) (1,426)
Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and purchases of minority interests 26 - (44) (167}
Net repayment of debi by Zeneca Agrochemicals 27 - - 909
Disposals of business operations 28 - - -
Disposals of investrments in joint ventures and associates - - @
- {44) 740
Equity dividends paid to Shareholders {1,234) {1,236) {1,220)
Net cash inflow before management of liquid resources and financing : 30 2,056 303 1,648
anagement of liquid resources and financing
vement in short term investments and fixed deposits (net) (806} 260 (608)
Financing 3t (118) 35 (66)
INet share re-purchases (1,154} (994) (334)

NDecrease)fincrease in cash in the year 29 (22) (396) 640
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Basis of Consolidation and Presentatig

The preparation of the Financial Statements in
conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assurnptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabiliies and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the Financial
Staterments and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

As part of AstraZeneca’s obiective to afign
with accounting best practice, cash
discounts arising from prompt payment of
invoices have been reclassified from cost of
sales to sales. Comparatives have also been
reclassified for consistency of presentation.
Both sales and ¢ost of sales have been
reduced by $287m in the current year (2001
$258m, 2000 $221m}. The change has
minimal impact on previously stated sales
growth rates. Furthermore, neither profits nor
net assets have been affected.

Discontinued operations

Following the demerger of the Zeneca
Agrochemicals business on 13 November
2000 and its subsequent merger with
Novartis' agribusiness to form Syngenta AG,
Zeneca Agrochemicals’ results have been
reported as discontinued operations.

New accounting standards
The following new accounting standard was
adopted during the year:

UK Financlal Reporting Standard 19 (FRS 19)
— "Deferred Tax' is applicable for accounting
periods ending on or after 23 January 2002. it
requires full provision to be made for deferred
tax assets and liabilities arising from timing
differences between the recognition of gains
and losses in the Financial Statements and
their racognition in a tax computation excent
for certain exemptions set out in the standard.
The impact of adoption in the year ended 31
Decernber 2002 has been to reduce net profit
by $19m, Compliance with FRS 19 at 31
December 2001 reduced net assets by
$193m, being an increase in assets of $511m
and an increase in liabilities of $704m. The net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2001
decreased by $61m (2000 $261m), resuliing
in an sffective tax rate of 28.5% (2000 40.6%)
compared with the previously reported 27%
(2000 33,8%). The adjustments did not
change the tax effects on exceptiona! items.
Basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 Decemnber 2001 have been restated from
$1.69t0 $1.65 (2000 $1.44 to $1.30) whilst
earnings per share before exceptional items

AstraZeneca Annugl Report and Form 20-F|2002 Financial Statements
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have fallen from $1.77 to $1.73 (
to $1.62). Comparative periods
restated.

—‘Retirement Benefits’ becomes
effective for accounting periods
or after 1 January 2005, with i
of disclosure required for each a

sets out the requirements for a
retirement benefits, including the

31 December 2002 and these arg i

Note 32 to the Financial Statemet

N of Financial Information




Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

“The Financial Statements are prepared under
the historical cost convention, modified to
-inciude the revaluation to market value of
-certain current asset investments held by
-Group subsidiaries as described below, in
-accordance with the Companies Act 1985
-and UK generally accepted accounting
-principles (UK GAAP). Where there are
significant differences to US GAAP these

have been described in the US GAAP section
0N pages 11310 122. The following
maragraphs describe the main accounting
policies under UK GAAR The accounting
poficies of some overseas subsidianies and
=associated undertakings do not conform with
UK GAAP and, where appropriate,
=adjustments are made on consolidation in
wrder to present the Group Financial
Statements on a consistent basis.

On 13 Novernber 2000, AstraZeneca
odemerged Zeneca Agrochemicals, which
=nvas merged with the Novartis agribusiness to
sorm Syngenta AG. The irmpact of the
wiernerger on the AstraZeneca Financial
SStaternents for the year ended 31 December
2000 is showninNote 27.

Critical accounting policies
sAstraZeneca’s management considers the
‘ollowing to be the most important
ccounting policies in the context of the
roup’s operations. Theimpact of these
icies and management judgements made
applying them are discussed in the
inancial Review,

umover

umover excludes intercompany tumover

d value added taxes and represents net
nvoice value less estimated rebates, returns
d settiement discounts. Reverue is

nised at the point at which title passes,

esearch and development
esearch and developrment expenditure is
ged to profitin the year in which itis

COn the acquisition of a business, fair values
Ere attributed to the net assets acquired.
Coodwill arises where the fair value of the
Eonsideration given for a business exceeds
he fair value of such net assets. Goodwill
Erising on acquisitions since 1998 is
Fapitalised and amortised over its estirnated
L iseful life {generally not exceeding 20 years).
Eoodwillis reviewed for impainment when
Rhere are indications that the carrying value
Fnay not be recoverable. The Group’s policy

AstraZeneca Arnua Report and Form 20-F 2002
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up to and including 1997 was to eliminate
goodwill arising upon acquisitions against
reserves. Such goodwill will remain eliminated
against reserves until disposal or termination
of the previously acquired business (inciuding
the planned disposal or termination when
there are indications that the value of the
goodwill has been permanently impaired),
when the profit or loss on disposal or
termination will be calculated after charging
the gross amount, at cument exchange rates,
of any such goodwill.

Post-retirement benefits

The pension costs relating to UK retirement
plans are assessed in accordance with the
advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
amounts so determined include the regular
cost of providing the benefits under the plans
which it is intended should remain as alevel
percentage of current and expected future
eamings of the employees covered under the
plans. Varations from the regular pension
cost are spread on a systematic basis over
the estimated average rermaining service lives
of current employees in the plans. Retirernent
plans of non-UK subsidiaries are accounted
forin accordance with local conditions and
practice. With minor exceptions, these
subsidiaries recognise the expected cost of
providing pensions on a systematic basis
over the average remaining service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of
independent qualified actuaries. The costs of
providing post-retirement benefits other than
pensions, principally healthcare, are charged
to the profit and koss account on a consistent
basis over the average service lives of
employees. Such costs are assessedin
accordance with the advice of independent
qualified actuaries. AstraZeneca has adopted
the disclosure requirements of FRS 17,

Other accounting policies

Foreign currencies

Profit and loss accounts in foreign currencies
are translated into US dollars at average rates
for the relevant accounting periods. Assets
and liabilities are translated at exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the Group balance
sheet.

Exchange gains and losses on short term
foreign cumency bonmowings and deposits are
included within net interest payable.
Exchange differences on alt other
transactions, except relevant foreign currency
loans, are taken to operating proft. Inthe
consolidated Financial Staterments exchange
differences arising on consolidation of the net
investments in overseas subsidiaries, joint

Financial Statements
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ventures and associates together with those
on relevant forelgn currency loans are taken

directly to reserves via the staterment of total

recognised gains and losses.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profits
for the year and takes into account taxation
deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of certain items for
taxation and for accounting purposes. Full
provision is made for the tax effects of these
differences. No provision is macie for
unrernitted eamings of foreign subsidiaries
where there is no comimitrment 1o rernit such
earnings, nor is provision made for rolled over
capital gains. The deferred tax balances are
not discounted.

Fixed assets, depreciation and
amortisation

AstraZeneca’s policy is to write off the
difference between the cost of each tangible
fixed asset and its residual value evenly over
its estimated remaining life. Reviews are
made periodically of the estimated remaining
lives of individual productive assets, taking
account of commercial and technological
obsolescence as well as normal wear and
tear. Under this policy it becomes
impracticable to calculate average asset lives
exactly. However, the total lives range from
approximately 13 to 50 years for buildings,
and 310 15 years for plant and equipment.
Intangible assets, including patents acquired,
are capitalised and amortised over their
estimated useful lives {generally not
exceeding 20 years), in line with the benefits
accrnuing. If related products fail, the
remaining unamortised amounts are
immediately written off to revenue expense.
Finarice costs and internally developed
intangible assets are not capitalised. Al fixed
assets are reviewed for impairment when
there are indications that the camying value
may not be recoverable.

Leases

Agsets held under finance leases are
capitafised andincluded in tangible fixed
assets at fair value, Each asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term or its useful
life. The obligations related to finance leases,
net of finance charges in respect of future
periods, areincluded, as appropriate,

under creditors due within, or creditors due
after, one year. The interest element of the
rental obligation is allocated to accounting
periods during the lease term to reflect a
constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the cbifigation for each aceounting
period. Rentals under operating leases are
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Accounting Policies continued

charged to the profit and loss account as
incurred.

Investments

An associateis an undertaking, notbeing a
subsidiary or joint venture, in which
AstraZeneca has a participating interest and
over whosa commercial and financial policy
decisions AstraZeneca exercises significant
influence.

Ajoint venture is an entity in which
AstraZeneca holds an interest on along term
basis and which s jointly controlled by
AstraZeneca and cne or more other venturers
under a contractual amangement.

AstraZeneca’s share of the profits less losses
of all significant joint ventures and associates
isincluded in the Group profitand loss
account on the equity accounting basis or, in
the casa of joint ventures, the gross equity
accounting basis. The hotding value of
significant associates and joint ventures in the
Group balance sheet is calculated by
reference to AstraZeneca’s equity in the net
assets of such associates and joint ventures,
as shown by the most recent accounts
available, adjusted where appropriate and
including goodwill on acquisitions made since
1 January 1998,

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost
and reviewed forimpairment if there are
indications that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Current asset investments held by the
Group’s insurance company subsidiaries, to
the extent that they are actively matched
againstinsurance liabilities, are valued at
market valus and unrealised gains and lossgs
aretaken directly to reserves viathe
statement of total recognised gains and
losses. Realised gains and kosses are taken to
the profit and loss account.

Contingent liabilities

Through the normal course of business,
AstraZenecais involved in legal disputes the
settierment of which may involve cost to the
Group. Provision is made where the outooime
and associated costs can be estimated
refiably.
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AstraZeneca is exposed to envirohmental
lizbiities relating to its past operations,
principafly in respect of soil and grbunciwater
remediation costs, Provisions for these costs
are made when there is a present jobligation, it
is probable that expenditure on remedial work
will be required and a reliable estirpate canbe
made of the cost.

Stock valuation
Finished goods are stated at the lbwer of cost
or net realisable value and raw materials and
other stocks at the lower of cost gr
replacernent price. The firstin, firgt out or an
average method of valuation is used. In
determining cost, depreciation is |ncluded but
selling expenses and certain ov
expenses (principally central administration
costs) are excluded. Net realisabls value is
determinad as estimated selling price less
costs of disposal,

Principal financial instrumen
Forward foreign exchange contracts for
existing transactions are revalued to year end
spot rates and the gains/osses ayising are
recognised in the Group profitand loss
account. Interest differentials are ised
on a straight line basis over the lif¢ of the
contract.

The gains/losses on forward foreign
exchange contracts and currency option

gains/losses arising are includ
measwement of the related fabilfti
dealt with in the Group profit andloss account
or reserves as appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Composition of the Group
The Group Financial Statements consolidate the financial statements of AstraZeneca PLC and its subsidiaries, of which there were 235, at

31 December 2002. Owing to local conditions and to avoid undue delay in the presentation of the Group Financial Statements, Salick Health
Care prepares its financial statements to 30 November.

2 Note of historical cost profits and losses

There were no matetial differences between reported profits and losses and historical cost profits and losses on ordinary activities
Defore taxation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
3 Group operating profit
Cong)nmlzjing cperations
exceptional Exceptional 2002
items items Total
$m $m $m
Group turnover 17,841 - 17,841
Operating costs
Costof sales {4,520) - (4,520)
Distribution costs (141) - (141)
Research and development (3,068) - (3,069)
Selling, general and admiinistrative expenses (5,998) (350} (6,348)
(13,728 {350) {14,078}
Other operatingincome
Royalties 113 - 113
Cther income 130 - 130
243 - 243
Other income includes gains arising frorn disposals under ongoing product rationjlisation programmes.
Group operating profit 4,356 (350) 4,006
Charges included above
- for depreciation (705) - (705)
—for amortisation (255) - (255)
—forimpaiment - - -
Gross profit, as defined by the Companies Act 1985 13,321 - 13,321
4 Share of operating profits/{losses) of joint ventures and associates
Cong:ginq operations
exceptional Exceptional 2002
iterns items Total
$m $m $m

Share of operating floss)/profit of joint ventures

Share of operating profit of agsociates
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Continuin rations Continuing operations Disconlg'nued operations
Pre Pre re
exceptional  Exceptional 2001 exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional 2000
ssTod) (rockassiiod) (edlassiiod) odassiled) (reckassied) (ecassiied) (eclassod) feciassied)
{reclassi reclassified) (reclassi {reclassifi reclass reclassi i reclassi
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
16,222 - 16,222 15,583 - 2,299 - 17.882
{4,198} 34 {4,232} (3,960) {11) {1,292 - 6,270
(122) - (122) 210) - (76) - (286)
(2,687} (86) {2,773} (2,620) (s3)] (222} - (2,893}
(8,427) 82) {5,509 5,032 (260) (399 - {5,691}
{12,434) (202) {12,636} (11,822) (322) (1,996) - {14,140)
154 - 154 160 - 33 - 193
214 - 214 83 - 10 - 73
368 - 368 223 - 43 - 266
4,156 {202) 3,954 3,984 (322) 346 - 4,008
(605} (12) 617) (585} - (102} - {687)
(255) - (255) (281) - (14 - {295)
- - - © {18 - - {24)
12,024 (34) 11,880 11,623 (11} 1,000 - 12,612
Continuing operations Continuing operations  Discontinued operations
Pre Pre ~ Pre
exceptional  Exceptional 2001 exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional 2000
items iterns Total items items iterns tems Totat
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
- - - (12) (137) - - (149)
- - - (12) {137) - - (149)
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Notes 1o the Financial Statements continued

5 Exceptional items

2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m

Accrual refated to Zoladex investigation {350) - -
integration and synergy costs - (202 (322)
Exceptional items included in operating profits (350} (202) 322
Continuing operations
Provision of impairment of investment in Advanta BY (after charging $49m
of goodwill previously written off o reserves) - ~ (137)
Share of operating losses of joint ventures and associates - - (137}
Discontinued operations
Costs related to the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals
and formation of Syngenta AG - - (150)
Profits less losses on sale, closure, or demerger of operations - - (150)
Profit on sale of fixed assets - 10 -
Total exceptional items before taxation (350) (192} {609}
Net taxation credit - 54 28
Total exceptional items after taxation (350) (138) (581)

The US Department of Justice has been conducting an investigation into the sale
investigation was prompted by the fiing of a gui tam complaint by a private party
claims to the Medicare and Medicaid programmes. The Company and federal an
settlement of the civil and criminal claims at issue in the investigation. As a result,
believes it appropriate to accrue $350m to cover estimated setement costs.

The integration and synergy programme infliated in 1999 was completed during
principally for manpower related costs, IT costs, and contractors. The cumulativ

The Group tock an exceptional charge of $137m in 2000 to provide for impairment of its 50% interest in the seeds company Advanta BY,

including a write off of $49m of related goodwill previcusly taken to reserves.

The costs related to the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals and formation of

charges were $1,388m.

genta AG included advisors’ fees, the costs of separating

and marketing of Zoladex {goserelin acetate implant). This

N 1997 and involves allegations of improper subtmissions of

d state authorities are in the process of negotiating a potentia
aithough no final agreement has been concluded, the Company

P00, with further exceptional charges of $202m (2000 $322m),

computer systems, employee related costs and environmental and occupationg! health provisions. The exceptional charge was reduced by the
gain on disposal of products whose sale was required by the competition authorties as a condition of the creation of Syngenta AG. Tax relief on
risirig out of the restructuring of the business in preparation for

the net exceptional costs was more than offset by the provision for capital taxes

demerger, resulting In a net tax cost of $50m.
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B Netinterest
2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m
lnterest receivable and similar income from investments
ESecurities 21 19 30
EShort term deposits 90 179 192
EExchange gain 6 1 46
LJoint ventures - - 1
117 199 269
nterest payable and similar charges
oan interest (10) (32) {50)
interest on short term borrowings and other financing costs (51} {35) 62)
Discount on liability (10} {(15) (19)
Exchange losses (16) {12) -
Joint ventures - - 3)
(87) {94) (134}
Net interest receivable 30 105 135

The discounting charge above relates to amounts owed in respect of the re-acquisition of certain distribution rights, the final instalment of which
is payable in 2003. In prior years, all interest has been classified within continuing operations as the management of the Group's liguidity and
funding is carried out by the central treasury function and it is not practicable to allocate interest to the different reporting segments.
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7 Taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation, as shown in the Group profit and loss g

ccount, was as follows:

2002 2201 2000
$m (resta $encj1) (resta&d)
UK 741 618 808
Overseas 3,296 3,458 3,039
4,037 4,077 3,847
Taxes on profit on ordinary activities were as follows:
UK taxation
Corporation tax 165 147 130
Double taxation relief (29) 37) (42)
Deferred taxation 24 53 {3
160 163 a5
Overseas taxation
Overseas taxes 929 739 1,066
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {51) {17) 4
Deferred taxation 139 275 402
1,017 997 1,472
Share of taxation of joint ventures
and associates - - 3
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 1,177 1,160 1,560

In prior years, the charge for taxation has been allocated between continuing opetations and discontinued operations based on the effective tax

rates for the Group in the temitories in which these operations are based.,

UK and oversesas taxation has been provided at cument rates on the profits eameq
To the extent that dividends remitted from overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures an
appropriate amounts have been provided, No deferred tax has been provided for
are, in the main, considered permanently employed in the businesses of these co
taxes would not be material. Cumulative unremitted eamings of overseas subsidi

at 31 December 2002. Unremitted eamings miay be liable to overseas taxes and/(
were to be distributed as dividends.

Exceptional items included in tax on ordinary activities

for the periods covered by the Group financial statements,

f associates are expected to resultin additional taxes,
Lnremitted eamings of Group companies overseas as these

panies and, in the case of joint ventures and associates, the
ries and related undertakings totalled approximately $9,141m
or UK taxation (after allowing for double taxation relief) if they

2002 2001 2000
$m $m gm
Tax credit on exceptional items* - {54) {28)

* Includes defarred tax refief of Snil (2001 $23m, 2000 $66m).

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
In certain circumstances, tax charges or credits on cumency differences on borrov
recognised gains and losses. The tax charge on such currency translation differen
and has been reported in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Factors affecting future tax charges

Mngs are taken to reserves via the statement of total
ces amounted to $2m in 2002 (2001 $6m, 2000 $42m),

As a group invalved in worldwide operations, AstraZeneca is subject to several fagtors that may affect future tax charges, principally the levels

and mix of profitability in different jurisdictions, transfer pricing policies and tax leve

Isimposed.
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7 Taxation {continued)

Tax reconciliation to UK statutory rate

[The table shown below reconciles the UK statutory tax charge to the Group’s current tax charge on profit on ordinary activities before taxation.

2002 2001 2000
sm (restaéen?) (restags?nd)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4,037 4,077 3,847
Notional taxation charge at UK corporation tax rate
of 30% {30% for 2001, 30% for 2000} 1,211 1,223 1,154
Difterences in effective overseas tax rates 141 108 215
Capital allowances/tax reliefs in excess of depreciation (291) {401) {235)
Other timing differences {40) (99) {134)
Itemns not deductible for tax purposes 49 418 37
ltemns not chargeable for tax purposes (110) (58) {54)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (51) (17) 4
Exceptional items 105 28 171
Current ordinary tax charge for the year 1,014 832 1,158
Balance sheet 2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m

Deferred taxation (liability)/asset movement
At beginning of year (212) 96 369
Prior year adjustment (page 62) - ~ (33)

(212) 96 336
Profit and loss account {163) (328} (399)
Statement of total recognised gains and losses 155 {19} 83
Exchange (139) 39 76
Atend of year (358} (212) 96
Debtors — amount due within one year (Note 15} 625 550 541
Debtors — amount due after more than one year (Note 15) 226 146 189
Provisions (Nate 21) (1,210) {208} (634)

(359) 212) 96




WWW.astrazeneca.com

72

Notes to the Financial Statements con

AstraZeneca Annual Report and Formn 20-F 2002

Financial Statements

inued

7 Taxation {continued)

Deferred taxation
The amounts of deferred taxation accounted for in the Group balance sheet comptjsed the following deferred tax liabilities and assets:
2002 2001
4m (resta&erg)
Deferred tax liabilities
UK fixed assets 429 332
Non-UK fixed assets 570 455
Interest accruals 13 72
Untaxed reserves 86 11
Pension and post-retirement benefits 46 -
Cther 53 150
1,197 1,020
Deferred tax assets
Intercompany inventory transfers 496 413
Merger, integration and restructuring charges 16 121
Accrued expenses 243 161
Pension and post-retirement benefits 26 91
Other 57 22
838 808
Deferred tax liability {359) 212

No provision has been made, in accordance with FRS19, for rolled over gains amo

Unting to $126m (2001 $75m, 2000 $79m).
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Dividends
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
Per Per Per
Share Share Share $m $m $m
interim, paid on 7 October 2002 $0.23 $0.23 $0.23 398 405 406
| Second interim, to be confirmed as final,

payable 7 April 2003 $0.47 $0.47 $0.47 808 820 830
$0.70 $0.70 $0.70 1,206 1,225 1,236

Dividend in specie — demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals - - 1,669

[ The demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals in 2000 was recorded in the Group accounts at the book value of the net assets which were
deconsolidated, $2,059m {net of minarity interest), together with $813m of related goodwill which had previously been written off to reserves,
less debt and abilities assumed by Zeneca Agrochemicals, $1,208m, giving a dividend in specie of $1,668m.

9 Eamings per $0.25 Ordinary Share

2002 2001 2000

om (resta;sfzmd) (restagzrﬂ)
Net profit for the financial year before exceptional tems {$m) 3,186 3,044 2,858
Exceptional tems after tax {$m) (see Note 5) (350) {138) {581)
Net profit for the financial year ($m) 2,836 2,906 2,277
Earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptional tems (§) $1.84 $1.73 $1.62
Loss per Ordinary Share on exceptional iterns ($) ($0.20) ($0.08) {$0.32)
Eamings per Ordinary Share () $1.64 $1.65 $1.30
Diluted earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptional items (§) $1.84 $1.73 $1.62
Diluted loss per Ordinary Share on exceptional items (3 {$0.20) ($0.08) ($0.32)
Diluted earnings per Ordinary Share (§) $1.64 $1.65 $1.30
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue
for basic eamings {milions} 1,733 1,758 1,768
Dilive impact of share options outstanding (millions) 2 3 2
Diluted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue {milions} 1,735 1,761 1,770

There are no options, warrants or rights cutstanding in respect of unissued shares except for employee share option schemes.

The number of options cutstanding and the weighted average exercise price of these options is shown in Note 33. The eamings figures usedin
the calculations above are unchanged for diluted earnings per Ordinary Share. Earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptional items have been
calculated to eliminate the impact of exceptional items on the results of the business.
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10 Segment information
Classes of Business
Turmover
2002 2007 2000
(reclassified) {reclassified)
m m $m
Continuing operations 17,841 16,222 15,683
Discontinued operations — Agrochemicals - - 2,209
Group turnover 17,841 16,222 17,882
Share of joint venture turnover 19, 183 185
Group tumover and share of joint venture turnover 18,032 16,405 18,077
The Group's policy is to transfer products internally at external market prices.
Operating profit Profit/loss) before
. after exceptionals interest and taxation
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Profit arising in
Continuing operations 4,006 3,954 3,662 4,007 3,872 3,665
Discontinued operations - Agrochemicals - - 346 - - 196
4,006 3,854 4,008 4,007 3,972 3,861
Share of operating loss of joint ventures
and associates - - (149)
4,007 3,972 3,712

In prior years, corporate overheads have been allocated to each business segmen
material.

on a consistent basis. The effect of these allocations was not

Net assets/fliabilities) Total assets

2002 : 2028) (restated) (res?ated)

$m e é}eg) (rasta&m $m $m $m

Continuing operations 9,868 8,808 7,604 16,212 14,158 13,658
Discontinued operations — Specialties - ~ {126} - - 3
9,868 8,808 7,478 16,212 14,158 13,661

Intra-Group efiminations - - - - - (12)
Non-operating assets” 1,358 B21 1,938 5,364 4,338 5,208
Investments in joint ventures and assocliates - - - - - -
11,226 9529 9,416 21,576 18,496 18,857

* Non-operating assets include shor term investments and cash, short term borrowings, loans, an
business segments.

K non-operating debtors and craditors not attributable toindividual

Depreciation, amortisation

Capital expenditure™ and impaiment

20602 2%1 2000 1 2000

$m $m $m $m $m $m

Continuing operations 1,463 1,501 1,248 960 872 890
Discontinued operations — Agrochemicals - - 153 - - 121
1,463 1,601 1,401 960 872 1,011

** Capital expenditure includes expenditure on goodwill and intangible assets.
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10 Segment information {continued)

Geographic areas
The tables below show information by geographic area and, for turnover and tangible fixed assets, material countries. The figures for each area
show the tumover, operating profit and profit on ardinary activities before interest and taxation made by companies located in that area/country,
together with net operating assets and tangible fixed assets owned by the same companies; export sales and the related profit are included in
the areas from which those sales were madie.

Turnover
Rl
$m ( $m $m
UK
External 872 954 989
intra-Group 3,002 2,449 2,155
3,964 3,403 3,144
Continental Europe
France 1,111 928 86t
Germany 682 666 767
Italy 676 576 532
Netheriands 226 307 297
Spain 461 352 402
Sweden 619 559 601
Others 1,253 1,091 891
Intra-Group 1,646 1,494 1,371
6,674 5973 5,722
The Americas
Canada 570 525 479
United States 9,325 8,465 7.935
North America 9,895 8,990 8414
Brazil 97 102 133
Cthers 237 213 185
Intra-Group 235 223 183
10,464 9,528 8915
Asia, Africa & Australasia
Japan 960 830 813
Others 752 654 698
intra-Group 30 160 177
1,742 1,644 1,688
Continuing cperations 22,844 20,548 19,462
Discontinued operations — Agrochemicals -~ - 3,396
22,844 20,548 22,865
Intra-Group eliminations {5,003) {4,326) {4.983)
17,841 16,222 17,882

Export sales from the UK totalled $3,368m for the year ended 31 December 2002 (2001 $2,664m, 2000 $3,429m),
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10 Segment information (continued)

Operating profit Profit on ordinary activities

afterlexceptional items before interest and taxation

2002 2001 2000 2001 2000

Profit from $m Bm $m $m Sm $m
UK 672 520 666 673 523 661
Continental Europe 1,689 1,400 1,084 1,689 1,405 943
The Americas 1,473 1,904 1,740 1,473 1,914 1,740
Asia, Afica & Australasia 172 130 172 172 130 172
Continuing operations 4,006 3,954 3,662 4,007 3,972 3,516
Discontinued operations - Agrochemicals - - 346 - - 186
4,006 3,954 4,008 4,007 3,972 3,712

Net operating assets

2002 2001 2000

$m $m $m

UK 3,101 2,558 2,037
Continental Europe 4,805 4,940 4,649
The Americas 1,004 614 184
Asia, Africa & Australasia 958 696 734
Continuing operations 0,868 8,808 7,604
Discontinued operations — Specialties - - (126)
9,868 8,808 7,478

Tangible fixed assets

2002 2001 2000

$m $m $m

UK 2,319 1,881 1,631
Sweden 1,626 1,251 1,327
Us 1,031 895 818
Others 1,621 1,382 1,181
Continuing operations 6,597 5,409 4,957
6,597 5,409 4,957

Employees 2002 2001 2000

Average number of people employed by the Group in

UK 10,700 10,200 10,000
Continental Europe 22,600 19,800 20,400
The Americas 17,800 16,700 14,200
Asia, Africa & Australasia 6,400 5,800 5,500
Continuing operations 57,500 52,600 50,100
Discontinued operations — Agrochemicals - ~ 6,900
57,500 52,600 57,000

The number of pecple employed by the Group at the end of 2002 was 58,700 (2001 54,600, 2000 52,300).
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10 Segment information {continued)
ol
$m ( $m $m
Geographic markets
Turnover in each geographic market in which customers located
UK 623 759 787
Continental Europe 5,072 4,477 4,359
The Americas 10,287 9,353 8,799
Asia, Africa & Australasia 1,859 1,633 1,638
Continuing operations 17,841 16,222 15,583
Discontinued operations — Agrochemicals - ~ 2,299
17,841 16,222 17,882
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11 Tangible fixed assets

Capital
expenditure
and assets in Total
Land and Plant and course of tangibie
buildings  equipment construction assets
$m $m $m $m
Cost
At beginning of year 2,490 5,295 1,119 8,904
Exchange adjustrnents 202 612 139 1,043
Capital expenditure 48 212 1,082 1,342
Transfer of assets into use 387 631 (1,018) -
Disposals and other movements {72) {150) (24) (246)
Atend of year 3,145 6,600 1,298 11,043
Depreciation s
At beginning of year 753 2,742 - 3,465
Exchange adjustments 87 354 - 441
Charge for year 104 601 - 705
Disposals and other movements {49) (146) - (195)
Atend of year 895 3,551 - 4,446
Net book value at 31 December 2002 2,250 3,049 1,298 6,597
Net book value at 31 December 2001 1,737 2,563 1,119 5,400
Capital expenditure in the year of $1,342m (2001 $1,393m} did not include any caﬂrtalrsed finance leases (2001 $ni).
Cash expenditure on tangible fixed assets was $1,340m (2001 $1,385m, 2000 $1,347m).
2002 2001
$m $m
The nat book value of land and buildings comprised
Freeholds 2,220 1,690
Long leases (over 50 yaars unexpired) 29 45
Shortleases 1 2

2,250 1,737
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12 Goodwill and intangible assets
Intangitile
Goodwill assels Total
$m $m $m
Cost
At beginning of year 1,000 2,727 3,727
Exchange adjustments 85 311 396
Additions 17 104 121
Disposals and other moverments - (25) (25)
Atend of year 1,102 3,117 4,219
Amortisation
At beginning of year 166 861 1,027
Exchange adjustments 28 128 156
Charge for year 55 200 255
Disposals and other moverments - (26) (26)
Atend of year 249 1,163 1,412
Net book value at 31 December 2002 853 1,954 2,807
Net book value at 31 Decernber 2001 834 1,866 2,700
13 Fixed asset investments
Joint Other
ventures  investments Total
$m $m $m

Cost
Atbeginning of year 134 23 157
Additions - 25 25
Disposals and other movements, including exchange - @ @
Atend of year 134 46 180
Share of post-acquisition reserves
At beginning and end of year (134 - {134)
Net book value at 31 December 2002 - 46 45
Net book value at 31 December 2001 - 23 23

The fair values of other investments are not materially different from their camying values. At 31 December 2002, the Company's share ownership

trust heid 885,425 Ordinary Shares.
Share of joint venture assets and liabilities
2002 2001
$m $m
Gross assets 107 99
Gross liabilities {107) {99)
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14 Stocks
2002 2001
$m $m
Raw materials and consumables 992 796
Stocks in process 1,062 720
Finished goods and goods for resale 539 886
2,693 2,402
15 Debtors
2002 2001
$m (reStaFS?md)
Amounts due within one year
Trade debtors 2,71 2,430
Less: Amounts provided for doubtful debts {56} (42)
2,645 2,388
Deferred taxation (Note 7} 625 550
Other debtors 658 641
Prepayments and accrued income” 519 274
‘ 4,447 3,853
Amounts due after more than one year
Defened taxation (Note 7) 226 146
Other debtors 16 23
Prepayments and acorued income” 156 117
398 286
4,845 4,139
* Figures include prepaid pension costs (Note 32).
Provisions for doubtful debts
2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m
Balance at beginning of year 42 39 118
Profit and loss account charge 11 4 34

[

Amounts utilised and other movernents (incl. Agrochemicals demerger in 2000) {1) (113)
Balance at end of year 56 42 39
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16 Shortterminvestments
2002 2001
$m $m
Listed debt securities 144 288
Other listed investments 46 45
Investment securities 180 333
Fixed deposits 3,772 2,785
3,962 3,118

The Group’s insurance subsidiaries hold cash and short terminvestments totalling $173m {2001 $186m)}, of which $120m (2001 $105m)is
required to meet insurance solvency requirements and which, as a resutt, is not readily available for the general purposes of the Group. In
addition, some $126m (2001 $236m) of short term investments shown above are committed as security against deferred payments due under a
contractual obligation of the Group (see Note 34). The market value of other listed investrnents was $137m (2001 $145m} at the year end.

17 Short term borrowings

2002 2001
$m $m

Bank borrowings
Fixed securities 1" 50
Secured by floating charge - 8
Unsecured 191 183
202 213
Cther borrowings (unsecured}) - 1

202 214
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

18 Other creditors

2002 2001
$m $m
Amounts diue within one year
Trade creditors 317 2,385
Corporate taxation 1,19 1,018
Value added and payroll taxes and social security 167 173
Other creditors 1,507 1,219
Accruals 855 544
Dividends to sharsholders 808 820
7,699 6,159
Amounts due after more than one year
Cther creditors 34 152

included in other creditors are amounts totaliing $189m (2001 $104m) to mest insurance obligations of the Group’s insurance subsidiaries. Also
included in other creditors are amounts due within one year in connection with the {Sroup's exceptional charges as detailed in Note 5. The
amounts comprise $350m (2001 $nif) in respect of the accrual related to the Zoladiex investigation in the US, $36m (2001 $118m) inrespect of
synergy and integration costs, $14m {2001 $21m) in respect of the Agrochemicalsidemerger and $48m (2001 $64m) in respect of the
Specialties disposal and other minor restructurings.

19 Loans

Repayment 2002 2001

Dates $m $m

Secured loans
Secured by fixed charge 2003/2007 19 48
Total secured 19 48
Unsecured ioans
US dollars
6.3% Guaranteed notes 2003 284 284
7% Guaranteed debentures 2023 295 295
Cthers 2003/2013 44 15
Total unsecured 623 694
Totalloans 642 742
Less: curent instalments of loans (314) (107}
Loans due after rmore than one year 328 835

In the above table lcans are shown after taking account of associated cross-currency swaps {see Note 20).

Loanis from banks includedin the table above amounted to $61m (2001 $156m) of which $40m (2001 $48m) was secured.
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20 Financial instruments

A discussion of the Group's objective, policy and strategy in respect of risk management and the use of financial instruments is inciuded in the
Financial Review on pages 30 to 43. The following disclosures exclude all short term trade related debtors and creditors.

Interest rate rigsks of financial assets and liabilities
The interest rate profile, after taking account of interest and currency swaps, of the financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at

31 December 2002 was:

Financial Weighted  Weighted
assetsMiabitities average average
onwhich fixed period for
Floating Fixed nainterest is interest  whichrate
rate rate paid/received Total rate is fixed
&m $m $m $m % Years

Financialliabilities
US dollar 782 8 126 916 12.8 9.6
Steriing - - - - - -
Euro - - - - - -
Other 35 19 - 54 6.3 22
817 27 126 970 - -

Financial assets

US dollar 4,354 - - 4,354 - -
Euro 71 - - 71 - -
Sterling 114 - 46 160 - -
SEK 33 - - 33 - -
Other 70 - 22 92 - -
4,642 - 68 4,710 - -

Financia! liabilities on which no interest is paid comprise deferred payments due relating to the reacquisition of certain marketing rights.

The floating rate financial liabiiities comprise largely of fixed rate debt that has been swapped into floating rate debt. One long dated $300m USD
bond reverts back teo a fixed rate in 2009. The financial liabilities alse include $202m of short term bank borowings and overdralts, bearing
interest at rates fixed by reference tolocal interbank rates.

Financial assets on which no interest is received comprise equity investments held by the Group.

The financial assets principally comprise cash on overnight deposit and short term investments with an average maturity of 67 days. These
include deposits where the interest rate is fixed untit maturity but, as the criginal maturity is less than one year, they are classified as ficating rate
financial instruments. The benchmark rates for financial assets are the LIBID rate for euro and US dollar liquidity balances and the average
Federal Funds effective rate for US dollar overnight balances. Financial assets include $46m of other fixed asset investrments on which no interest

is received.
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20 Financial instruments (continued)

Currency exposures

100% of the Group's transactional currency exposures on working capital bal
using fonward foreign exchange contracts. As aresult, as at 31 December 2002, th
other than the functional currencies of the Group companies concerned, having
contracts that have been utilised to match foreign currency exposures.

Additionally, approximately 50% of forecast future foreign currency transaction e
principal currency exposures (sterling, Swedish kronor, euro, Australian dollars,

, which typically extend for up to three months, are hedged
were no material monetary assets or fiabiliies in currencies
en into account the effect of forward exchange curency

ures extending for 12 months are sefectively hedged. The
adian dollars and yen) are hedged using a mixture of

purchased cumrency options and forward foreign exchange contracts. As at 31 Degember 2002 the Group held forward and option contracts to
hedge the following forecast foreign cumency transaction exposures:
2002 2001
Hedged Hedged
amount amount
$m $m
Sterling payables 1,316 1,324
SEK payables 503 401
Euro receivables 713 591
Yen receivables 163 89
AUD receivables 81 73
CAD receivables 168 128
Maturity of financial liabilities
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, other than short term creditorsisuch as trade creditors and accruals,
at 31 December 2002 was as follows:
2002 2001
Analysis by year of repayment Loans Other Total Loans Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m
After five vears 308 - 308 314 - 314
From five to four years 13 - 13 14 - 14
From four to three years - - - 9 - 9
From three to two years - - - 7 - 7
From two to one years 7 - 7 29 120 411
Due after more than one year 328 - 328 635 120 755
Due within one year 314 328 642 107 356 463
642 328 970 742 476 1,218
Other financial lisbilities comprise deferred payments to re-acquire certain distribution rights, short term borrowings and finance leases.
Borrowing facilities

The Group has various bormowing facilities available to it, the majority of which offer

short termm credit facilities (both committed and uncomimitted) totalled appfoximate;

undrawn committed facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been

currency option of US dollars, euros or sterling. Unused
$0.5bn at 31 December 2002. Included in this were
met at that date as follows:

2002 2001

$m $m

Expiningin one year or less 75 375
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years - -
Expiring in more than two years - -
75 375
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20 Financial instruments {continued)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Set out befow is a comparison by category of carrying values and fair vatues of all the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities as at
31 Decermber 2002 and 2001,

2002 2002 2001 2001
Carrying Fair Canvying Fair
value value value value
$m $m $m $m

Primary financial instruments
Short term borowings {202) {202} 214} {214}
Loans (657) {733) {759) {803}
Cash 726 726 705 705
Short terminvestments 3,962 4,067 3,118 3,192
Fixed asset investments 46 48 23 23

Derivative financial instruments held to manage

the interest rate and currency profile

Cross-cunency swaps and interest rate swaps 15 82 17 70
Derivative financial instruments held orissued

to hedge the curmency exposure on existing transactions

Forward foreign exchange contracis (9 )] 11 9
Foreign currency option contracts - - 1 —
Derivative financial instruments heid or issued to hedge

the cutrency exposure on expected future transactions

Forward foreign exchange contracts - - - 1

Foreign currency option contracts 56 97 82 81

In addition to the primary financial instruments above, the Group has financial iabilities of $126m comprising deferred payments due ($128m
before discounting). The Group has a standby letter of credit covering these financial liabiiities which is cotiateralised by high grade government

The methods and assumptions used 1o estimate the fair values of financial instruments are as follows:

a. Short term investments — the fair value ot iisted investments is based on year end quoted market prices. For unlisted investments carrying
values approximate fair vatue,

. Fixed assetinvestments {excluding equity investments in joint ventures and associates) - the fair value of listed investments is based on year
end guoted market prices. For uniisted investments carmying values approximate fair value,

. Loans - the fair value of publicly raded debt is based on year end quoted market prices; the fair value of fioating rate debt is nominal value, as
market to market differences would be minimal given frequency of resats; the fair value of remaining debt is estimated using appropriate zero
coupon vatuation techriques based on rates current at year end.

. Forward foreign exchange contracts - the Group has forward foreign exchange contracts to sall currency for the pumase of hedging non-
doliar commercial ransaction expostres which existed at the date of the balance sheet and to nedge anticipated, but not firmly cornmitted,
non-dollar commercial transactions for 2003. The majority of the cantracts for existing transactions had a maturity of six months or less from
year end. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is based on market forward foreign exchange rates at year end.

. Foreign cumency option contracts - the Group has foreign currency option contracts to hedge anticipated, but not firmily committed, non-
dollar commercial transactions for 2003, The falr value of option contracts is estimated using Black-Scholes valuation technigues as
adapted by Garman and Kohthagen.

Interest rate and cross-currency swaps - AstraZeneca uses interest rate and cross-currency swaps to hedge the Groups exposure to
fiuctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange movements on borrowings in accordance with a formal risk management strateqy, The fair
value is estimated using appropriate zero coupon valuation technigues based on rates current at year end.
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20 Financial instruments [continued)

The above financial instruments are subject to credit and market risk. AstraZeneca containg credit risk through the use of counterparty and

product specific credit limits and by ongoing review procedures. All financial instruments exceapt the letter of credit are transacted with
cormimerciat barks and, inline with standard market practice, are not backed with cash

llateral. The notional principal values of off balance

sheet financial instruments do not represent amounts exchanged by the barties and are hot a measure of the credit risk to the Group of these
instruments. The credit risk of these instruments is limited to the positive fair values of sugh contracts.

Market risk is the sensitivity of the value of finandial instruments to changes in related

ency and interest rates. The Group is not exposed to

materia market risk because gains and losses on the derivative financial instruments arg largely offsst by gains and losses on the underlying

assets, liabilities and fransactions subject o hedge,

Hedges

The Group's policy is to hedge 100% of transactional cumrency exposures and 50% of forecast future transaction exposures using forward
forsign exchange contracts and foreign cumency option contracts. 1 also uses croas-clmency and interest rate swaps to manage its borrowings'

profie.

Gaing and losses on instruments used for hedging are nat recognised until the exposure that is being hedged is itself recagnised, Unrecognised

gains and losses oninstruments used for hedging are as follows:

Total nat
Gaing | osses gains
$m $m
Unrecognised gains and fosses on hedges at 1 January 2002 L 54 {4} 50 .
Gains and losses arising in previous years that were recognised in 2002 L 31 CH] 27 |
Gaing and losses asising in previous years that were not racognised in 2002 | 23 - 23
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 31 December 2002 | 108 - 108
Gains and lossas expected to be recognisad in 2003 | 56 - 56
Gains and losses expected to be racognisedin 2004 orfater | 52 - 52
21 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Environmental,
ltigation
In ion  Employes and other Deferred
and synergies benefits  provisions taxation Total
{restated) {restated)
$m $m $m $m $m
At 1 January 2001 as previously reported I 25 754 204 85 1,068
Prior year adjustment [page 62) | - - - 549 549
[ 25 754 204 634 1,617
Profit and ioss account | 156 103 14 329 602
Net amounts paid or becorming current [(148) (306) (55) - (509)
Acquisitions | - 1 - - 1
Other movements, including exchange | o8 ©3) {15) (56) (111)
At31 Decernber 2001 (restated) [ 15 529 148 908 1,600
Profit and foss account 1 - 8g 43 308 437
Net amounts paid or becorming current [ @y (279) @1 - (@321)
Other movements, including exchange [ 10 34 16 (3) 57
At 31 Decermber 2002 | 14 s 176 1,210 1,773

Employee benefit provisions comprise pension, post-retirement and other employee benefit provisions. These will crystafiise, in the main, over
he estimated working lives of the employees concerned. The environmental prpvisions are principally in respect of sites in the US, further details

ofwhich are given in Note 34,

No provision has been released or applied for any purpose other than that for which it was established.
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22 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
2002 2001 2000
$m (restaée‘nd) (restagamd)
Shareholders’ funds at beginning of year 9,586 9,389 10,302
Prior year adjustrnent {page 62) - - 39)
9,586 9,389 10,263
Net profit for the financial year 2,836 2,906 2,277

Dividends

Cash (1,206) (1,225) (1,236)
Dividend in specie = - {1,669
1,630 1,681 {628)
Issues of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares 36 86 19
Re-purchase of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares {1,180) {1,080} (353)
Astra AB minarity interest buyout - - ®)
Goodwill written back - - 862
Exchange adjustments on net asseis 1,106 {502) B70)
Transiation differences on foreign currency borowings 8 18 154
Tax on translation differencas on foreign currency borrowings 2) (6) 42)
Cther rmovements - - (8)
Net addition toAreduction in} shareholiders’ funds 1,586 197 (874)
Shareholders’ funds at end of year 11,172 9,586 9,389

Shareholders' funds at the beginning of the year were onginally $9,786m: before deducting the prior vear adjustmeant of $200m inrespect of

deferred tax under FRS 19 (2001 $9,521m before deduction of $132m),

23 Reserves
Share Capital Joint Profit
premium  redemption Merger Other ventures and andioss
account reserve reserve reserves  associates account Total
{restated) (restated)
$m 3m $m $m $m $m $m
' At 31 December 1999 as previously reporied 202 1 44 703 {27) 8,538 9,858
Pricr vear adjustment {page 62) - - - - - (39 {39
202 1 441 703 27) 8,499 9,819
Loss retained for year (157) @71 (628)
Share premiurns 19 19
Transfer between reserves 14 (14) -
Re-purchase of shares 2 (353) (351)
Astra AB minority interest buyout 8 8
Goodwill written back 862 862
Exchange adjustments:
Goodwil 87 {67) -
Net assets 1 {871) 870
On foreign currency borrowings 154 154
Foreign currency borrowings tax effect 43 {42}
87 1 {826) {758
Other movements 2 (10) 8
hNet movements 33 2 {8) 931 (156) {1,674 i872)
At 31 December 2000 {restated) 235 3 433 1,634 {183) 6,825 8,947
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23 Reserves [continued)

Share Capital / Jaint Profit
premium  redermption Merger GCther ventures and and loss

account resene raserve reserves  associates account Total

{restated) {restated)

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m

At 31 December 2000 (restated) 235 3 433 | 1,634 {183) 6,825 8,947

Profit retained for year J 1,681 1,661

Share premiums 86 J 86

Transfer between reserves 13 J (13) -

Re-purchase of shares 6 l (1,080) (1,074)
Exchange adjustments:

Goodwil 19 (19) ~

Net assets | (502) (502)

On foreign currency borrowings I 18 18

Foreign currency borrowings tax effect [ ®) )

I 19 £09) (490)

Net movements 99 6 4 19 - 79 208

At 31 December 2001 {restated) 334 9 433 1,653 (183) 6,904 9,150

Profit retained for year | 1,630 1,630

Share premiums 36 | 36

Transfer between reserves 33 I (33) -

Re-purchase of shares 7 | 1,190  0.183
Exchange adjustments:

Goodwil (30) a0 ~

Net assets | 1,106 1,106

On foreign currency bormrowings J 6 6

Foreign cumrency borrowings tax effect ‘ ) 2}

| (30) 1,140 1,110

Net movements 69 7 |- (30) - 1,547 1,593

At 31 December 2002 403 16 433 1,623 (183) 8,451 10,743

The prior year adjustment arises as a result of the adoption of FRS19 ‘Deferred Tax', fas explained In more detall on page 62.

The movement in other reserves in 2000 relates to the realisation of goodwill in respect of the desmerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals ($813m) and

the impainment of the Advanta seeds business goodwl {$49m).
The cumulative amount of goodwill resulting from acquisitions, net of disposals, to the adoption of FRS 10in 1998, amounted to $617m
{20071 $587m, 2000 $606m) using year end rates of exchange.

There are no significant statutory or contraciual restrictions on the distribution of curent profits of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates;
undistributed profits of prior years are, in the main, permanently ermployed in the businesses of these companies, The undistributed income of
AstraZeneca companies overseas may be liable to overseas taxes and/or UK
distributed as dividends {see Note 7).

lon {after allowing for double taxation refief) if they were to be
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24 Net cashinflow from trading operations
2002
$m
Operating proiit before exceptional fiems 4,356
Depreciation and amortisation 960
Stocks decrease/(increass) 101
Debtors (increase)/decrease {198)
Creditors increase/{decrease) 402
Other non-cash movements 65
5,686
25 Cash flows related to exceptional items
Current period cash fliow related to exceptional items and merger 2002
related payrnents, before associated tax charge/relief $m
Merck trigger event payment -
Merger, integration and synergy costs (68)
Salick Health Care rationalisation -
Agrochemicals restructuring -
Costs relating to the disposal of Specialties business (21)
Demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals and formation of Syngenta AG (a)
Outflow related to exceptional charges {93}

Repayment of debt by Zeneca Agrochemicals
(included in *Acquisitions and disposals’}

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets accounted for as exceptional

Exceptionat item cash flow

{83}




AstraZeneca Annual Report and Form 20-F 2002 Financial Stalements

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

26 Acquisitions of subsidiaries and purchases of minority interests

There were no significant business acquisitions in any of the years presented, All acquisitions have been accounted for by the acquisition method

of accounting.
2002 2001 2000
Tota) Total Total
fair value fair value fair value
$m $m $m
Fixed agsets - 4 -
Cument assets - 26 -
Creditors due within one year - {16) -
Provisions for labilities and charges - 1 -
Fair value of net assets acquired - 13 -
Goodwill acquired - 41 a0
Consideration for subsidiaries and operations acquired - 54 32
Purchases of minority interests - It 135
- 47 167

Less:

Cash included in undertaking acquired - 3 -
Net cash consideration - 44 167

Assets and fiabifities were adjusted fo their fair values based on external valuations and jnternal assessments. There were no significant
differences between book and fair values in respect of the acquisitions made in any of +e years presented.
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27 ZenecaAgrochemicals demerger

On 13 November 2000 Zeneca Agrochemicals was demerged from the Group and merged with the agribusiness of Novartis to form Syngenta
AG. The Zeneca Agrachemicals results for the period to 13 November 2000 have been reported as discontinued in the AstraZeneca accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2000. The demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals was accounted for as a dividend in specie. The impact of the
demerger on the year ended 31 December 2000 is set out below.

$m

Fixed assets 1,491
Current assets 2,130
Creditors due within one year {1,306)
Creditors due after more than one year and provisions (248)
Book value of Zeneca Agrochemicals net assets disposed 2.069
Minority interest share of net assets (10)
Goodwill previousty charged to reserves written back 813
2,872

Repayment of debt by Zeneca Agrochemicals

Net repayment of debt per Cash Flow Statement {802)
Net financial fiabitities demnerged {204
(1,203

Dividend in specie 1,662

In the year ended 31 December 2000, prior to its demerger, the Agrochemicals business contributed $173m to operating cash flows before
exceptional tems, and absorbed $78m in respact of exceptional items and $149m in respect of capital expenditure.

28 Disposals

There were no significant disposals in any of the years presented.

20 Reconciliation of net cash flow o movement in net funds

2002
$m

(Decrease)/increase in cash (22)
Cash outfliow/{inflow) from decrease/(increase) in loans and
short term bormowings 118
Cash outflow/{inflow) from increase/{decrease)
in short term investments 806
Change in net funds resulting from cash flows 902
Detit released on disposals -
Other non-cash changes -
Exchange movements 75
Movernent in net funds 977
Net funds at 1 January 2,867

Net funds at 31 December 3,844
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30 Analysis of net funds
At1dan Cash Other  Exchange  At31Dec
2002 fow  noncash  movements 2002
$m $m $m $m $m
Loans due after one year (6:35) 28 279 - (328}
Cunent instalments of loans (107) 77 279) 5) (314)
TotaiJoans {742) 108 - 5) {642
Short termi investments 3,118 806 - 38 3,962
Cash 705 (18) - 30 726
Cverdrafts (195) @ - {3 {202)
Short term borrowings, excluding averdrafts {19} 13 - & -
3,609 797 - 80 4,486
Net funds 2,867 902 - 75 3,844
Financing items included in cash movements above:
Issue of shares {36}
Re-purchase of shares 1,190
Net cashinflow before management of
liguid resources and financing 2,056
31 Financing
2002 2001 2000
Notes $m $m $m
Issues of AstraZeneca PLC Crdinary Shares 30 36 86 19
Re-purchase of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares 30 (1,190} {1,080} (353}
1,154 (994) 334)
Repayment of lease finance - — 12)
New loans - 220 39
Loans repaid (105) {(192) {36)
Net (decrease)/increase in short term borrowings 30 {13} 7 {67}
{118) 35 {64)
Net cash outflow from financing (1,272 959) {400}

Thers were no major non-cash financing transactions in any year.
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32 Post-retirement benefits
Pensions

Background

The Group continues to account for pension costs in its primary Financial Statements in accordance with the UK Statement of Standard
Accounting Fractice Ne.24 “Pension Costs" [SSAP 24). In addition, disclosures have been presented below in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard No.17 “Retirement Benefits” FRS 17),

The Company and most of its subsidiaries ofier retirement plans which cover the majority of employees in the Group. Many of these plans are
“defined contribution” where the company contribution and resulting profit and loss account charge is fixed at a set level or is a set percentage of
employees' pay. However, several plans, mainly in the UK, US and Sweden, are “defined benefit”, where benefits are based on empioyees’
length of senvice and final pensionable pay. All of the major plans are funded through legally separate trustee administered funds. The mejor
defined benefit plans, apart from the Swedish plan, have been closed to new entrants since 2000. The cash funding of the plans, which may
from time to time involve special payments, is designed, in consultation with independent qualified actuaries, to ensure that present and future
contributions should be sufficient to meet future liabilities.

SSAP 24

The cost of defined benefit plan pensions in a year can notionally be divided into the regular cost and variations from the reqular cost. Under
SSAP 24 the regular cost is based on actuarial assumptions and charged to the profit and loss account inthe year it is paid whilst any variations,
which arise where the experience of the scherne varies from the assumptions made by the actuary, are charged or credited over the estimated
remaining service lives of the empioyees. Costs of defined contribution pian pensions are charged to the profit and loss account immediately, On
these bases, the total pension cost for the Group under SSAP 24 for 2002 was $220m 2001 $124m, 2000 $184m). In the Group balance sheet
at 31 December 2002, accrued pension costs included in other creditors amounted to $53m (2001 $76mi; prepaid pension costs of $114m
{2001 $47m) are includedin debtors. Provisions for unfunded pension obligations, included in provisions, amounted to $235m (2001 $357m).

With regard to the Group's main UK defined benefit fund, the latest actuarial vaiuation was camied out at 31 March 2002 and the pension cost
assessed using the projected unit credit method. The key accounting assumptions for the purposes of SSAP 24 were that, againsta
background long term UK price inflation averaging 2.5% pa, investment returns would average 6.5% pa, salary increases 4.3% pa and pension
increases 2.5% pa. The market value of the fund’s assets at the valuation date was £2,161m ($3,477m equivalent), representing 94.6% of the
liahilties using these assumptions. The regular cost for accounting purposes equates to 18.8% of pensionable salaries. At the same time, the
valuation was carried out for ongoing funding purposes, with assumptions slightly more congervative than those used for SSAP 24 purposes.
The market value of the fund's assets at the valuation date represent 90.1% of the liabilities on a funding basis. The Company has indicated to the
trustee of the UK fund its intention to target a sofvency ratio of 91% following the 2003 actuarial valuation, with a fonger term aim of restoring
solvency over a period of around 15 years. Any cash contributions made to the fund would be treated as a prepayment and taken into account in
the actuarially assessed contributions to the fund charged to the profit and loss account.

The US defined benefits programime was actuarially revalued at 31 December 2002 when plan abligations were estimated to amount to $812m
and plan assets were $665m. The US typically makes contributions to provide for plan benefit deficits on a regular basis.

PRI Pensionstjianst AB, a joint company for Swedish industry, administers the Swedish plan for salaried employees and Alecta establishes
benefit levels and actuarial assumptions. During 2002 AstraZeneca AB has estabiished separate trustee administered funds to support its
pension liahilities; prior to 2002 the plan was unfunded.

Post-retirement benefits other than pensions

Inthe US, and to alesser extent in some other countries, AstraZeneca’s employment practices include the provision of healthcare and life
insurance benefits for retired employees. Sore 6,920 retired emnployees and covered dependants currently benefit frorn these provisions and
sone 13,383 cuent employees will be eligible on retirement, AstraZeneca accrues for the present value of such retivee obligations over the
working life of the employee.

The cost of post-retirement benefits other than pensions for the Group in 2002 was $22m (2001 $16m, 2000 $25m), Provisions and creditors
set aside for the benefit obligations at 31 Decembier 2002 arnounted to $32m (2001 $248m, 2000 $233m). Cther than this provision there were
plan assets amaunting to $133min the US at 31 December 2002. These benefit plans have been included in the disclosure of post-retirerment
benefits under FRS17.
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32 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

FRS17
Fullimplementation of FRS 17 had originally been intended for accounting periods ending
Accounting Standards Board until accounting periods commencing on or after 1 Januany
FRS 17 between its issue and full implermentation dates remain and this information is sef

Financial Statements

ied

onor after 22 June 2003 but has been deferred by the
2005. However, the reguirements for disclosure under

out below. When fully adopted, the objective of FRS 17

is to reflect the fair value of post-retirernent plan assets and liabilities and associated char

hes in the Financial Statements. FRS 17 specifies how

key assumptions should be formulated and applied; these assumptions are often different to the funding bases established by the pension

funds’ trustees or actuaries, The accounting requirernents of FRS 17 are broadly as follo

> Post-retirement sCheme agsets are valued at market values at the balance shest datp;

> Post-retirernent scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and
corporate bonds of eguivalent tenm and currency to the liabiity; and
> The movement in the scheme surplus/deficit will be split between operating charges
in the staterment of total recognised gains and losses, actuarial gains and losses.

Financial assumptions
Qualified independent actuaries have updated the actuarial valuations of the major defi
Decamber 2002. The assumptions used by the actuaries are the best estimates ¢

iscounted at the current rate of retumn on high quality

and financing items in the profit and loss account and,

ed benefit schernes operated by the Group 1o 31
frorn a range of possible actuarial assumptions which,

due to the long term nature of the scherme, may not necessarily be bome out in practicg, These assumptions were as follows:
2002 2001
Rest of Restof
u Group UK Group
infiation assurmption 2.2% 2.1% 2.5% 2.7%
Rate of increase in salaries 4.0% 4.0% 4.3% 4.6%
Rate of increasa in pensions in payment 2.2% 0.5% 2.5% 0.5%
Discountrate 5.6% 5.8% 58% 6.2%

Long term rate of return expected at 31 December

Equities 8.3°/i 8.4% 7.6% 7%
Bonds 4.9% 6.1% 5.3% 6.1%
Others 37% 3.6% 4.0% 87%
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32 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

Post-retirement scheme deficit
The post-retirement scheme deficit set out below under FRS 17 is as if this standard were fully applied. However, under the current accounting

methodology (SSAP 24) there are prepayments and provisions (including deferred tax) within the balance sheet at 31 December 2002 that would
offset the effect on net assets of this deficit in the event of a restatement under FRS 17,

The asseats and liabilities of the major defined benefit schemes operated by the Group at 31 December 2002 as calculated in accordance with
FRS 17 are shown below. The fair values of the schemes” assets are not intended to be realised in the short term and may be subject to
significant change before they are realised. The present value of the scheme’s liabilities is derived from cash flow projections over long periods
and are thus inherently uncertain, If FRS 17 had been adopted for the year ended 31 December 2002 the Group’s reported net assets (see page
60) would be reduced by $637m (5.7 %) to $10,589m. Further explanation of this adjustment Is included below:

Vaiue at 31 December 2002 Value at 31 December 2001
~ " Restof

Rest of est o

UK Group Total UK Group Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m
Scheme assets
Equities 1,186 708 1,894 1,255 409 1,664
Bonds 2,097 464 2,561 1,831 214 2,045
Others 75 102 177 59 131 190
Total fair value of assets 3,358 1,274 4,632 3,145 754 3,899
Present value of scheme liabifities {4,200} {1,665} (5,865) {3,569 {1,472} {5,041}
Deficit in the scheme {842) {(391) {1,233) (424) 718) {1,142}
Related deferred tax asset 253 151 404 127 248 375
Net post-retirement deficit under FRS 17 ' (589) {240} (829) {297) {470) (767)
Adjustments for assets and provisions under SSAP 24
Prepayment, net of related deferred tax (177) (56)
Accrual, net of deferred tax . 36 143
Provision, net of deferred tax 333 296
Adjusted post-retirement deficit, net of related deferred tax (637) (384)
Net assets as currently disclosed (restated) (see page 60) 11,226 9,629
Net assets as adjusted if FRS 17 were fully adopted 10,589 9,245

Profit and loss account disclosures

On full cornpliance with FBS 17, on the basis of the above assumptions, the amounts that would have been charged to the consolidated profit
and koss account and staternent of total recognised gains and losses in respect of defined benefit schemes for the year ended 31 December 2002

are set out below:
Restof
UK Group Total
$m $m $m
Operating profit
Current service cost {100) &9 (169}
Past service costs {2 8 6
Settlernent and curtaiiment - 24 24
Total operating Charge {102}
Finance expense
Expected retum on post-retirement scheme assets 197
Interest on post-retirement scheme liabilities 210)
Net return (13)
Loss before taxation (115
Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses
Actual return less expected return on the post-retirement schemes’ assets (301}
BExperience fosses)/gains arfsing on the post-retirement schemes’ liabilities (108)
Changes in assumptions undertying the present value of the post-retirement schernes’ liabilities 88

Actuarial loss recognised (351)
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32 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

Additional disclosures for the year ended 31 December 2002

Rest of

UK Group Total

$m $m $m
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets:
Armount (301) @1 (392}
Percentage of scheme assets 8.0% 71% 8.5%
Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities:
Armount (108) 8 {100)
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilities 2.6% 0.5% 1.7%
Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Arnount (351) (110} (461}
Percentage of the present value of scherme liabilities 8.4% 6.6% 7.9%
Movement in post-retirement deficit during the year ended 31 December 2002

Restof

UK Group Total

$m $m $m
Deficits in schemes at beginning of the year (424) 718 (1,142
Curment service cost (100} (69) (169)
Contributions 125 567 692
Past service Costs {2) 8 3]
Settlement and curtailment - 24 24
Other finance income {13} {46) {59)
Actuaria loss (351) (110) (461)
Exchange {7 @7 (124)
Deficits in schemes at end of the year (842) (391) (1,233)
Adjusted post-retirement deficit, net of deferred tax (637}

The increase in the deficit during 2002 is due principally to shortfalls on retums of postiretirernent scheme assets and exchangs, ofiset by
funding of Sweden’s pension scheme and the US's non-pension post-retirement schemes for the first time in 2002,

Reserves note for the year ended 31 December 2002

Total

$m

Profit and loss reserve excluding post-retirerent (liability) 8,451
Post-retirernent reserve (637)

Profit and loss reserve under FRS17 7,814
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33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees

Employee costs
The average number of pecple employed by the Group in 2002 was 57,500 {2001 52,600, 2000 57,000} and the costs incurred during the year
inrespect of these employees were:

2002 2001 2000

$m $m $m

Salaries 3,049 2,701 2,862
Social security costs 505 465 464
Pension costs 193 194 184
Other employment costs 246 182 170
3,993 3,542 3,680

Ermployee costs above do notinclude severance costs.

The Directors believe that, together with the basic salary system, the Group’s employee incentive schemes provide competitive and market-
related packages to motivate employees. They should also align the interests of employees with those of shareholders, as a whole, through long
terrn share ownership in the Company. The Group's current UK, Swedish and US schemes are described below; other arrangements apply
elsewhere,

The AstraZeneca UK Performance Bonus Plan

Employees of participating AstraZeneca UK companies are invited to participate in this bonus plan which rewards good performance at
comporate, functiorn/business and individualfteam levels. Depending upon performance and upon which level itis measured, borusesmaybe
paid partly in the form of free Ordinary Shares in the Company (under the tnland Revenue approved AstraZeneca All-Employee Share Plan and
up to a maximum annual value of £3,000) and partly in cash. A tax efficient share retention scheme, under which employees leave their bonus
shares in trust for three to five years, forms part of the All-Employee Share Plan. In 2002, for the first time the Company offered UK employees the
opportunity 1o buy Partnership Shares (Ordinary Shares) under the All-Employee Share Plan, Employess rmay invest up 1o £125 per month over a
12 month accumulation pericd and purchase Partnership Shares in the Company with the total proceeds at the end of the period. The purchase
price for the shares is the lower of the price at the beginning or the end of the 12 month period. A tax efficient share retention scheme s also
avaitable in respect of Partnership Shares. At the Company's AGMin 2002, shareholders approved the issue of new shares for the purposes of
the All-Employee Share Plan.

The AstraZeneca Executive Annual Bonus Scheme

This scheme is a performance bonus scheme for Directors and senior employees who do not participate in the AstraZeneca UK Performance
Bonus Plan. Annual bonuses are paid in cash and reflect both corporate and individual performance measures. The Remuneration Committee
has discretion to reduce or withhold bonuses if business performance falls sufficiently short of expectations in any year such as to make the
payment of bonuses inappropriate.

The AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
UK employees may make regular monthly savings contributions over a three or five year period and ray apply for options to acquire
AstraZeneca shares. Further details are set out below,

The AstraZeneca Share Option Plan
This is a share option plan for employees of participating AstraZeneca Group companies which was approved by shareholders at the
Company’s AGMin 2000. The first grant of options occurred in August 2000. The main grant of options in 2002 under the plan was in March,

with a further, smialler grant in August. The Remuneration Committee sets the policy for the Company’s operation of the plan. Further details are
setout below.

Sweden

In Sweden an 2 employee performance bonus planis in operation, The plan rewards good performance at comporate, function and
individual/team level. Bonuses for corporate and function performance are always paid in the form of AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares. Bonuses for
individual/teamn performance may be paid in Ordinary Shares or in cash, af the employee's discretion. Bxisting Ordinary Shares are used to pay
bonuses awarded under the plan. These are purchased in the market, They must be left in trust for three years. The AstraZeneca Executive
Annua Bonus Scheme and the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan both operate in respect of relevant AstraZeneca employees in Sweden.

us

In the US, there are four senior staff incentive schemes, under which either AstraZeneca ADSS or stock appreciation rights related to
AstraZeneca ADSs are awarded to participants. There are currently approximately 146 participants in these schemes. AstraZeneca ADSs
necessary o satisfy the awards under these schemes are puschased in the market and no subscriptions for new Ordinary Shares have been
involved. The AstraZeneca Share Option Plan operates in respect of relevant AstraZeneca employees in the US.
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33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees {continued}

Share Option Plans
At 31 December 2002, there were options outstanding under the Zeneca 1993 Senior

Share Option Scheme, the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan, the AstraZeneca Savi

AstraZeneca Share Cption Flan.
(1) Summary of the Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme

The Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme was introduced at the time of the d

grant of options was 19 May 1994 and the scheme was replaced by the Zeneca 1994 Ex

{2) Summary of the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme

The Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme was introduced in 1994, The last dat
scheme has been replaced by the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan.

Options granted under the 1994 scheme will nomally be exercisable between three an
performance condition has been satisfied. Options may be satisfied by the issue of new

Options will not normally be exercisable unless a performance condition set by the Rem
performance condition is that earnings per share must grow by at least the increase inth
annum. Satisfaction of this condition is tested annually by reference to the audited finan
of any rolling three year period beginning no earlier than the end of the financial year pricr]
again in respect of that option. The Remuneration Committee reviews the performance ¢
appropriate.

(3) Summary of the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan

i

Financial Statements

st

Sthf Share Qption Scheme, the Zeneca 1994 Executive

ngs-Related Share Option Scheme and the

merger of Zeneca from IClin 1993, The last date for the
tive Share Option Scheme,

e for the grant of options was 16 March 2000 and the

dr 0 years following grant, provided the relevant

hares or by existing shares purchased in the rnarket.

neration Committee has been satisfied. The

e UK Retail Price Index over three years plus 3% per
statements. Once the condition is satisfied in respect
to the grant of the option, then it need not be satisfied
onditions at intervals to ensure that they continue to be

In 1996, Astra established a stock option plan for some 100 Astra employees in key sen)
options and has been supersaded by the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan.

On completion of the merger with Zeneca, options in Astra shares granted under the pl
AstraZeneca shares based on the exchange ratio used in the exchange offers used to
aptions grarted in respect of former Astra options was 0.5045 AstraZeneca options for

positions. The plan is no longer used for the grant of

were replaced by options to acquire a number of
ect the AstraZeneca merger, The ratio of AstraZeneca

leach Astra option held and the table shown on page 100

has been restated throughout accordingty.

{4) Summary of the AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

Eligibility

UK resident employees of participating AstraZeneca companies are automatically eligityle to participate.

Grant of options

Invitations to apply for options rnay be issued within six weeks after the announcement by the Company of its results for any period and at other
times in circumstances considered 10 be exceptional by the Directors. No invitations may be issued later than 10 years after the approval of the
scheme by shareholders.

Options may only be granted to employees who enter into UK Inland Revenue approved savings contracts with the savings bady nominated by
the Company, under which monthly savings of a fixed amount {currently not less than £5 nor more than £250) are made over a period of three or
five years. The number of shares over which an cption is granted will be such that the tgtal amount payable on its exercise will be the proceeds on
maturity of the related savings contract. No payment will be required for the grant of anjoption. Options ane not transferable.

Individual participation
Monthly savings by an employee under all savings contracts linked to options granted
lower amounts as may be determined by the Directors.

Linder any SAYE scheme may not exceed £250 or such
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Acquisition price
The price per Ordinary Share payable upon the exercise of an option will ot nommally be less than the higher of:

{a) 90% of the arithmetical average of the middie-market quotations for an Ordinary Share on the London Stock Exchange on three
consecutive dealing days shortly before the date on which invitations to apply for options are issued (provided that no such day may fall
before the Company last announced its results for any period) or such other dealing day or days falling within the six week period for the issue
of invitations as the Directors may decide; and

) the nominal value of an Ordinary Share (unless the option is expressed 1o relate only to existing shares).

Exercise of options
An option will normally e exercisable only for six months commencing on the third or fifth anniversary of the commencement of the related
savings contract. Options may e satisfied by the issue of new shares or by existing shares purchased in the market,

Options nomally lapse on cessation of employment. Exercise is, however, permitted for a limited period (imespective of the period during which
the gption has been held) following cessation of employment in certain compassionate circumstances or where an option has been held for
rmore than three years (except on dismissal for misconduct) and on an amalgarmation, take-over or winding-up of the Company.

AstraZeneca has chosen to avail itself of the exemyption to application of UTF17 (revised) to its SAYE scheme.
(5) Summary of the AstraZeneca Share Option Pian

Eligibility
Any AstraZeneca employee may be recommended from time to tirme for the grant of an option. The Remuneration Cornmittee sets the policy for
the Company’s operation of the plan inciuding as regards which employees will be eligible to participate.

Grant of options

Cptions may be granted at any tirme other than during a close period. No options rmay be granted after the fifth anniversary of the approval of the
plan by shareholders until the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the plan.

The grant of options is supervised by the Remuneration Committee which is comprised wholly of Non-Executive Directors. No payment is
required for the grant of an option. Options are not transferable.

Options may be granted over Ordinary Shares in AstraZeneca PLC or over the Company's ADSs.

Acquisition price

The price per Ordinary Share payable upon the exercise of an option will not be less than an amount egual to the average of the middle-market
closing price on the date of grant for an Ordinary Share of the Comparny on the London Stock Exchange on the three consecutive dealing days
imrmediately before the date of grant {or as otherwise agreed with the Inland Revenue). Where the option is an option to subscribe, the price
payable upon exercise cannot be less than the nominal value of an Ordinary Share of the Company.

Exercise of options
An option will nomally be exercisable between three and 10 years following its grant provided any relevant performance condition hasbeen
satisfied. Options may be satisfied by the issue of new shares or by existing shares purchased in the market.

The Remuneration Conmittee sets the policy for the Company's operation of the plan including as regards whether any performance targetis)
will apply to the grant and/or exercise of each eligible employee’s option.

Options normally lapse oh cessation of employment. Exercise is, however, permitted for a limited period following cessation of employment
either for reasons of injury or disability, redundancy or refirement, or at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, and on an amalgamation,
take-over or winding-up of the Company.
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AstraZeneca Share Option Plan 19894 Scheme SAYE Scheme ASVIP
Shares
. under
Options WAEP* Options WAEP* Options WAEP* option WAEP*
‘000 pence ‘000 pence ‘000 pence ‘000 SEK
At1 January 2000
Options outstanding Nil Nil 3,001 1934 4,388 1708 1,249 361
Movements during 2000
Options granted 712 3093 8,885 2714 723 2806 Nil -
Options exercised Nil Nil 800) 1525 {1,078} 1117 (159) 303
Options forfeited Nil Nil (99) 2675 (207) 1843 Nil -
Options lapsed Nil Nil Nil - Nil - Nil -
Weightedt average fair value of options
granted during the year 802 712 396
At 31 December 2000
Options outstanding 712 3093 10,987 2588 3,826 2074 1,090 370
Movements during 2001
Options granted 10,984 3245 - - 649 2071 - -
Options exercised { 3093 (592) 1687 {1,125) 1583 117 228
Options forfeited {296} 3231 (457} 2709 (851} 2181 8 306
Options lapsed - - - - - - - ~
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year 653 495
At 31 December 2001
Options outstanding 11,399 3236 9,038 2636 2,799 2459 965 375
Movements during 2002
Options granted 10,658 3482 - - 2,721 1756 - —
COptions exercised 22} 3214 {243} 2175 (469} 1888 {206} 317
Options forfeited (637) 3298 (406) 2654 (986) 2735 -~ -
Options iapsed - - - - - - ~ -
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year 1186 569
At 31 December 2002
QOptions outstanding 21,398 3347 9,289 2647 4,085 1987 759 391
Range of exercise prices 1913pto 826pto 1756pto 298SEK to
3487p 2749p 2971p 4428EK
Weighted average remaining
contractual life 3,183 gays 2,642 days 1,439 days 746 days
Options exercisable 351 3303 1786 2367 130 2070 759 3N

* Weighted Average Exercise Price

In addition to the schemes disclosed above at 31 Decernber 2002 there were 5,000 opti
Staff Share Option Scheme with a weighted average exercise price of 717p.

ons outstanding issued under the Zeneca 1993 Senior
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2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m
Assets pledged
Mortgages and other assets pledged 90 118 51
Commitments
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure
not provided for in these accounts 500 515 604

Included in the above total are contracts related 1o certain product purchase and licence agreements with deferred consideration
obligations, the armounts of which are variable depending upon particular ‘milestone’ achievements. Sales of the products to which these
‘milestones’ relate could give rise to additional payments, contingent upon the sales levels achieved. Guarantees and contingencies arising
in the ordinary course of business, for which no security nas been given, are not expected to result in any material financial loss.

Commitments

AstraZeneca s required to pay approximately $800m over at least a five-year period which commenced in 1999, under the terms of an
agreement with Schering-Plough. With effect from 1 January 1999, in connection with this agreement, AstraZeneca obtained a stand-by
letter of credit in the amount of $608m. This letter of credit is coliateralised by high-grade government securities which are not available to
AstraZeneca to the extent of the outstanding balance of the letter of credit, The amount outstanding under the letter of credit is
automatically reduced with each payment made by AstraZeneca to Schering-Piough. Under the terms of this agreement AstraZeneca
reacquired the rights to market omeprazole under the Losec trade mark and felodipine under the Prevex and Perfudal trade marks in italy
and Spain. The tfotal discounted lisbflity and associated asset were recognised in 1993, Payments under this agresment in 2002 totalled
approdimatety $146m. The final payment will be made in 2003,

In 1998, Astra and Merck & Co., Inc restructured their joint venture (the “restructuring™ which had been established some years eariier for
the purpose of selling and marketing certain Astra products in the US.,

Under the terms of the 1998 restructuring, the merger between Astra and Zeneca in 1999 triggered two one-time payments frorn
AstraZeneca to Merck:

> alump Sum Payment of $809m, which was charged to profit and loss account, as a result of which Merck relinguished any rights to
Zeneca products; and

> an Advance Payment of $967m. This Advance Payment was calculated as the then net present value of $2.8bn discounted from 2008
to the date of payment at a rate of 13% per annum and led Merck to relinquish any rights to future Astra products with no existing or
pending US patents at the time of the merger.

AstraZeneca makes ongoing payments to Merck based on sales of certain AstraZeneca products in the US {the “contingent payments” on
the “agreement products”) as well as certain other partnership distributions, the latter of which are not material to the Group. As a result of
the 1999 merger, these contingent payments (excluding those in respect of Priosec and Nexium) are subject to defined minimum amounts
ranging from $125m to $225m between 2002 and 2007. Payments under these arrangements have exceeded the minimum levet in 2002,

The terms of the 1998 restructuring also provide for the following events:

> Partial Redemption
> First Option
> Second Option

Partial Redernption

In 2008, there will be a partial redemption of Merck's limited partnership interest — which will end Merck's rights to contingent payments in
respect of certain of the agreement products - by distribution to Merck of an amount calculated as a multiple of the previous three years’
contingent payments on the relevant products, plus $750m.

First Option

In 2008 a calculation will be made of the Appraised Value, being the net present valuie of the future contingent payments in respect of all
other agreement products not covered by the Partial Redemiption other than Priiosec and Nexium. Payment of this amount to Merck in
2008 is, however, contingent on Merck's exercise of the First Option. Exercise of the First Option wilt require AstraZeneca to re-purchase
Merck’s interest in these products. Should Merck not exercise this option in 2008, AstraZeneca may exercise it in 2010 for & sum equal to
the 2008 Appraised Value. If neither Merck nor AstraZeneca exercise the option, the contingent payment arrangements in respect of these
agreement products will continue and the Appraised Value will not be paid.
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34 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities {continued)
In addition, in 2008 there will be a true up of the Advance Payment, The calculation of

years' contingent payments in respect of all the agreerment products with the exception
amounts, which are then reduced by the Appraised Value (whether paid or not), the Paj
couid result in a further payment by AstraZeneca to Merck or a payment by Merck to A

The precise amount of setflements with Merck under the Parfial Redemption and the F
some of the payments are based on calculations based on sales between 2005 and 2

exercising the First Option. However, if Merck does exercise this option, the combined
Merck in 2008 of approximately $4.7bn. If AstraZeneca exercises this option in 2010,
payable to Merck in 2008 and 2010 of approximately $4.7bn.

Finally, in 2008 Merck wiil repay to AstraZeneca a loan in the amount of $1.4bn made

Second Option

this will be based on a multivle of the previous three
of Prifosec and Nexdurn, plus other defined
tial Redemption and the Advance Payment. This

straZeneca.

Fst Option cannot be determined at this time, as

)07, and another is contingent upon Merck

flect will involve a minimum amount payable to
combined effect will involve a minimum aggregate

t the time of the restructuring.

A Second Option exists whereby AstraZeneca has the option to re-purchase Merck's interests in Priosec and Nexium in the US. This option
is exercisable by AstraZeneca two years after the exercise of the First Option in elther 2008 or 2010. Exercise of the Second Option by

AstraZeneca af a later date is also provided for in 2017 or if combined annual sales of
provided, In each case only so long as the First Option has been exercised. The exerc

two products fall below a minimum amount
price for the Second Option is the fair value of

these product rights as determined at the time of exercise. If the Second Option is exercised, Merck will have no further rights to contingent

payments from AstraZeneca.

Environmental costs and liabilities
The Group’s expenditure on environmental protection, including both capital and reven
meeting current good practice standards and regulatory reguirements for processes aff

They are an integral part of normal ongoing expenditure for maintaining the Group’s
separated from overall operating and development costs. There are no known change
resulting in material changes to the levels of expenditure for 2000, 2001 or 2002,

In addition to expenditure for meeting current and foreseen environmental protection r
invastigating and cleaning up land and groundwater contamination. In particular, Astr
or formetty owned, leased and third party sites in the US and Europe. AstraZeneca, o
legistation {the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
parties (PRP) in respect of 32 sites (although AstraZeneca expects to be indeminified
the seller or owner of the businesses associated with such sites) and, where appropri
activities at sites In respect of which it is a PRP. Stauffer Management Company, a su
and manage certain assets of Stauffer Ghernical Comipany which was acquired that v
AstraZeneca indemnitee has been named a PRP) for which it may have responsibility
on clean-up and moenitoring.

Liabiities are generally more likely to crystallise where a contaminated site is 1o be solg
imposes a particular remedial measure. Costs of these liabilities may be offset by amo)
owners of the sites in guestion or through insurance.

Lie items, relates to costs which are necessary for
d products.

nufacturing capacity and product ranges and are not
in environmental, regulatory or other requirsments

uirements, the Group incurs substantial costs in

eneca has environmental fiabilities at some currently

its indemnitees, have been named under US

t of 1980, as amended) as potentially responsible

ainst liabilities associated with nine of these sftes by

te, actively participates in or monitors the clean-up
idiary of AstraZeneca established in 1987 1o own

, has idertified 28 sites {ncluding 18 for which an

hat will, in aggregate, require significant expenditure

, its use changed or where a regulatory authority

unts recovered from third parties, such as previous

The future level of investigation and clean up costs will depend on a number of factorg, including the nature and extent of any contamination
that may ultimately be found to exist, the need for and type of any remedial work to be undertaken and the standards required by applicable
current and future environmental laws and regulations and the number and financial viability of other PRPs. The relative importance of these
factors varies significantly from site to site. Many sites are at different stages in the regulatory process or at different stages in the process of
evaluating envirormental damage or alternative remediation methods. It is therefore difficult to form meaningful rangss of estimates for such

costs.

AstraZenaca had provisions at 31 Dacember 2002 in respect of such costs in accord
Although there can be no assurance, management believes that, taking account of th
identified ervironmental obligations, as AstraZeneca currently views those obligations,
position.

Such contingent costs, to the extent that they exceed applicable provisions, could ha
of operations for the relevant period.

ance with the accounting policies on page 64.
ese provisions, the costs of addressing currently
is unlikely to impair materially AstraZeneca’s financial

e a material adverse effect on AstraZeneca’s results
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Legal proceedings

Losec/Prilosec (omeprazole}

In June 1997, the German Federal Patent Court declared invalid a previously granted supplementary protection certificate which extended
protection for omeprazole, the active ingredient contained in Losec, from 1999 to 2003. The decision was appealed and on 1 February
2000, at AstraZeneca's request, the German Supreme Court decided to refer the case to the European Court of Justice for a prefiminary
rdling. The court heard the case on 8 November 2001 and its decision is pending. The case does not involve any financial claims.

in March 2000, the German Federal Patent Court declared that AstraZeneca’s formulation patent for omeprazole was invalid. The decision
has been appealed to the German Supreme Court. As a consequence, all pending infringement actions in Germany have been stayed
awaiting the outcome of the appeal. There is one interocutory injunction in force against ratiophamm GmbH based on the formulation patent.
if the final decision on the validity of the formulation patent goes against AstraZeneca, ratiopharm may claim damages for lost sales due to
the interiocutory injunction.

In 1998, Astra filed suits in the LS against Andrx Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Genpharm, Inc. This followed the filing of abbreviated new drug
applications by Andrx and Genpharmn with the US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) concerning the two cormpanies' intention to market
generic omeprazole products in the US. During 1999, Astra aiso filed suits against Kremers Urban Development Company and Schwarz
Pharma, Inc., and against Cheminor Drugs Ltd., Reddy-Cheminor Inc. and Schein Pharmaceuticals, Inc. During 2000, AstraZeneca filed
further suits against Lek Phammaceutical and Chemical Company d.d, Impax Laboratories Inc., Eon Labs Manufacturing Inc. and Mylan
Pharmaceuticals Inc. During 2001, AstraZeneca filed further suits against Torpharm, Inc. and Zenith Geldline Pharmaceuticals, Inc. {ivex).
The basis for the proceedings is that the actions of all the companies infringe several patents relating to omeprazole (Prilosec in the US). The
cases are proceeding under the US Hatch-Waxman legislation. AstraZeneca filed additional patent infringement suits during 2001 against
Andrx and Genpharm in respect of one other omeprazole patent outside the Hatch-Waxman legislation. The trial against Andrx, Genpharm,
Krermers Urban Development Company and Cheminor started in December 2001 and ended in July 2002.

In October 2002, the US District Court for the Southern District of New York ruled that two AstraZeneca patents (‘230 and '505) relating to
the formulation of omeprazole are valid until 2007, that Andrx, Genpharm and Cheminor all infringed both patents but that Kremers Urban
Deveiopment Company did not infringe either patent. The court did not rule on the 281 patent relating to 2 manufacturing process for
omeprazole formulations in respect of which AstraZeneca has sued Andrx only. AstraZeneca has appealed the judgement with regard to
non-infringement and Kremers Urban Development Company. Andrx, Genpharm and Cheminor have appealed the decision with regard to
infringement and validity of the patents.

In April 2001, Andrx filed a case in the US District Court for the Southern District of New York against AstraZeneca, Merck & Co., Inc. and
the FDA afleging that the listing of certain patents in the FDA's Orange Book was improper and constituted violations of certain provisions of
the Shermian Act, the US federal anti-trust legislation, and a state statute analogous to the federal anti-trust laws. Andrx seeks injunctive
refief compelling the parties 1o delist omeprazole-related patents it claims were improperly listed in the Orange Book and prohibiting the
defendants frorn using patents to delay the effective date of the FDA's approval of Andrx’s ANDA for omeprazole. AstraZeneca and Merck
have filed motions to dismiss the case, which are pending.

AstraZeneca and Merck & Co., Inc. were named as defendants in three class actions; two in the US District Court for the Southem District
of New York and one in the US District Court for the Disfrict of New Jersey, The plaintifis are consumers and third party payers who have
alleged that they and others who are similarly situated have been forced to pay higher prices for omeprazole as a result of agreements that
AstraZeneca and Merck entered into that resulted in ‘urweasonable restraints of trade and competition’. Furthermore, the plaintiffs have
alleged that AstraZeneca and Merck engaged in conduct designed to extend their monopoly power ‘beyond the lawful boundaries of their
patents’. The pleintiffs are seeking declarative, equitable and injunctive relief enjoining AstraZeneca and Merck from continuing their alieged
ilegal activities, costs of suit, reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses and any other relief determined by the court. AstraZeneca filed a
motion in March 2002 to dismiss the two class actions before the US District Court for the Scuthem District of New York, which was
granted in June 2002. The plaintifis did not appeal. The plaintifis voluntarily dismissed the New Jersey case also in June 2002.

In October 2000, the Federal Court of Australia (Full Court) handed down a patent ruling pertaining to omeprazole in connection with a
dispute between AstraZeneca and the generic company, Alphapharm Pty Ltd. The court declared that AstraZeneca's formulation patent
was invalid. In November 2001, AstraZeneca applied for special leave to appeal the decision to the High Court of Australia and this
application was granted in December 2001, The appeal was heard by the High Court in May 2002 and in December 2002 the High Court
reversed the judgement of the lower court. The High Court ruled that AstraZeneca’s formulation patent is valid and that the case should be
retumed to the lower court for determination of the remaining issues.

During 2000, AstraZeneca was granted interlocutory injunctions based on certain of AstraZeneca’s omeprazole patents and supplementary
protection certificates against the generic company, Scandinavian Pharmaceuticals-Generics AB {Scand Pharm), in Sweden, Denmark and
Norway. In October 2000, the District Court of Stockholm ruled that Scand Phanm had infringed one of AstraZeneca’s supplementary
protection certificates for omeprazole. Scand Pharm has appealed this decision. In October 2001, Oslo City Court in Norway found that
Scand Pharm had infringed AstraZeneca’s formulation patent for cmeprazole. At the same time, the court declared AstraZeneca's
formulation patent valid. As a result of the Norwegian case, Scand Pharm cannot seli its omeprazole product in Norway, nor can it do so in
Sweden or Denmark pending the outcome of the main actions in the cases in these countries. If the final decisions in these cases are
against AstraZeneca, Scand Pharm may claim damages for lost sales due to the interiocutory injunctions.
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in March 2002, the Patents Court in the UK handed down a ruling invalidating certain
AstraZeneca applied for leave to appeal the decision to the Court of Appeal and this
Court of Appeal in October 2002 and the court affirmed the original decision of the Pat

In the Netherlands, Pharmachemie BV has filed a claim against two AstraZeneca comp
exclusive rights in the Netherlands in relation to the expiration date for AstraZeneca’s su
AstraZeneca denies the allegations and is defending the case.

Other court cases relating to omeprazale patents are pending worldwide. However, the
considered 10 be material.

In February 2000, the European Commission commenced an investigation relating to g
associated regulatory and patent infringerment litigation. The investigation is pursuant tg
of a dominant position. The investigation was precipitated by a complaint by a party to
AstraZeneca and relates to a limited number of European countries, AstraZeneca has,

Financizl Staternents

ed

AstraZeneca’s formulation patents for omeprazole.
plication was granted. The appeal was heard by the
ts Court invalidating the formulation patents.

anies alleging that AstraZeneca has misused its
pplermentary protection certificate for omeprazole.

financial impact if AstraZeneca loses is not

ertain omeprazole inteflectual property rights, and
Article 82 of the EC Treaty, which prohibits an abuse
a number of patent and other proceedings involving
in accordance with its corporate policy, co-operated

with the Commission. AstraZeneca remains of the view that the complaint is unfounded and that it has complied with all relevant

competition laws. In particular, it congiders that the matters raised by the complaint are
of the litigation in which the complainant is involved. The Commission has recently reqy
information from AstraZeneca and AstraZenaca will continue to co-gperate with the Cq

Zoladex (goserelin acetate implant) investigation

more properly dealt with by the courts in the comtext
jested certain factual patent and regulatory
Frimission.

The US Department of Justice has been conducting a civil and criminal investigation i
acetate implant). The investigation was prompted by the filing of a qui fam cornplaint b
improper submissions of ¢laims to the Medicare and Medicaid prograrnmes. The Com|
process of negotiating a potential settiement of the civil and criminal claims at issue in
agreement has been concluded, the Company bslieves it appropriate to accrue $350

Plendil {telodipine)

In August 2000, AstraZeneca LP received a letter from Mutual Pharmaceutical Go., |
market a generic version of AstraZeneca's felodipine extended release tablets (Plendi)
covering the extended release formulation. AstraZeneca filed a patent infringement ac
Eastern District of Pennsylvania. Mutual responded and filed counterclaims alleging no
to close in March 2003. A trial date has not yet been set.

in May 2001, AstraZeneca Phanmaceuticals LP received a similar letter from Zenith
AstraZeneca filed a patent infingement action against Zenith in the US District Court &
filed counterclaims alleging non-infringement. Fact discovery is due to close in May 2

Nolvadex (tamoxifen)
AstraZeneca is a co-defendant with Barr Laboratories, inc. in numerous purported ¢l
the LS. All of the state court actions were removed to federal court and have been cof
federal court, in a federal multi-district Itigation proceeding pending in the US District
casas were fled by plaintiffs representing a putative class of consurners who purc
putative class of ‘third party payers' {including health maintenance organisations, insu
plans) that have reimbursed or otherwise paid for prescriptions of tamaoxifen. The plain
monopolistic prices’ for tamoxifen as a result of the settlement of patent litigation be
injunctive relief, treble damages under the anti-trust laws, disgorgement and restitutio
the cases for failure to state a cause of action. The court’s decision is awaited.

0 the sale and marketing of Zoladex (Goserelin
a private party in 1997 and involves allegations of
ny and federal and state authorities are in the
investigation, As a resuft, atthough no final
to cover estimated settlement costs.

. informing AstraZeneca of Mutual’s intention to

rior to the expiration of AstraZeneca’s patent

n against Mutual in the US District Court for the
-infringement and invalidity. Expert discovery is due

dline Pharmaceuticals, nc. and in July 2001,
r the District of New Jersey, Zenith responded and
. A trial date has not yet been set.

actions filed in federal and state courts throughout

hsofidated, along with all of the cases originally filed in
lourt for the Eastern District of New York, Some of the
d tarmoxifen. The other cases were fled on behalf of a

rs and other managed care providers and health

iffs aliege that they paid ‘supra-competitive and

Zeneca and Barr in 1993, The plaintifis seek
In Apri) 2002, AstraZeneca filed a motion to dismiss

In August 2002, AstraZeneca’s US distribution agreement with Barr Laboratories, In¢. for non-branded tamoxifen expired, as did
AstraZeneca’s patent for Nolvadex (tamoxifen). At the same time, a six month period gf market exclusivity, awarded by the US Food and
Drug Administration in connection with the successful completion of certain paediatric|testing with the product, commenced. Barr thereafter
commenced litigation against the FDA in the US District Court for the District of Colurribia, challenging the FDA's refusal to grant Ban final

approval for its own generic tamoxifen prior to expiration of AstraZeneca’s exclusivity

extend the distribution agreement through the end of the exclusivity pericd. Therefore,|i

own non-branded tamoxifen to customers to ensure an uninterrupted supply to patie
not obtain final FDA approval for its own generic tamoxifen prior to the expiration of

iod. Barr also declined AstraZeneca’s offer 1o
in October 2002, AstraZeneca began shipping its
. In Decembar 2002, the Gourt held that Barr could

traZeneca’s paediatric exclusivity for Nolvadex. In

January 2003, Bar made a claim that AstraZeneca improperly thwarted Barr's entry into the tamoxifen market and caused Barr monetary

damages. AstraZeneca disputss the claim.
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Zestril {lisinopril)

In 1986, AstraZeneca’s predecessor company and Merck & Co., Inc. entered into licence agreements under which AstraZeneca was
granted the right to make, use and sell lisinopril (Zestri), in retum for which AstraZeneca agreed to pay royalties to Merck. In April 2002,
AstraZeneca commenced arbitration proceedings against Merck under one of the licence agreements. In the arbitration, AstraZeneca is
seeking repayment of approximately $38m of prior royalty amounts and a prospective reduction in the royalty rate going forward, based

on a provision of the licence agreement which reduces the royalty rate if sales of lisinopril by third parties exceed a certain level. The case is
currently progressing under the arbitration rules of the international Chamber of Commerce.

Retail pharmacies'/drug purchasers’ actions

Since October 1993, several thousand retail pharmacies and certain retail drug purchasers have commenced purported class actions and
individual actions in various federal and state courts throughout the US alleging that, with respect 10 brand name prescription drugs,
manufacturers and wholesalers engaged in discriminatory pricing practices, discriminatory discounting and rebate practices, and/or
conspired with one another to fix prices and artificially maintain high prices to the plaintiffs in restraint of trade and commerce. More than 20
brand name prescription drug manufacturers and eight wholesalers have been named defendants in some or ali of these suits.

AstraZeneca entered into a settlement agreement with the retail class plaintiffs whose anti-trust claims were consolidated in a federal multi-
district litigation proceeding pending in the US District Court for the Northern District of liinois. AstraZeneca also reached settliements with
numerous independent and chain phammacies that opted out of the federal class action, although there are still actions brought by certain
chain and independent pharmacies pending in federal court. AstraZeneca has settlied or been dismissed from ali of the state cases except
for a consumer case pending in state court in Alabama. AstraZeneca has consistently denied liability and continues to believe it has
meritorious defences to all of these claims. However, it believes that entering into these settiements is the prudent course of action given the
inherent risks and costs of litigation and to avoid further business disruption.

Average wholesale price class action litigation

In January 2002, AstraZeneca was named as a defendant along with 24 other pharmaceutical manufacturers in a class action suit, in
Massachusetts, brought on behalf of a putative class of plaintiffs alleged to have overpaid for prescription drugs as a result of inflated
wholesale list prices. The suit seeks to recover unspecified damages. AstraZeneca has also been named as a co-defendant with various
other pharmaceutical manufacturers in similar class action suits filed in five other states. Most of these suits have been consolidated with the
Massachusetts action for pre-trial purposes pursuant to federal mutlti-district litigation procedures. AstraZeneca believes that it has
meritorious defences to all of these claims.

Additional government investigations into drug marketing practices

Asis true for most, if not all, major prescription pharmaceutical companies operating in the US, AstraZeneca is currently involved in muttiple
additional US federal and state criminal and civil investigations into drug marketing and pricing practices. AstraZeneca has received subpoenas
from the US Attorney's Office in Boston requesting production of documents refating to the sale and promotion of Prifosec to the New England
Medical Center in Boston. A separate subpoena from the same office requests documenits relating to Prifosec purchasing and services
agreements with AdvancePCS, the pharmacy benefits management company. AstraZeneca has also received a subpoena from the
Massachusetts Attormey General’s Office seeking documents relating to the sale and promotion of five products (Prifosec, Seroquel, Rhinccort
Aqua, Toprol-XL and Zestrif) within Massachusetts. AstraZeneca has received an investigative demand from the Missouri Attorney General's
Office seeking documents and information relating to agreements with drug retailers doing business within Missouri. Most recentty, AstraZeneca
has received a Civit Investigative Demand from the US Federal Trade Commission for certain information concerning AstraZeneca's advertising
and marketing of Nexdurn. AstraZeneca is cooperating with these investigations. Itis not possible to predict the cutcome of any of these
investigations, which could include the payment of damages and the imposition of fines, penalties and administrative remedies.

General

AstraZeneca is also involved in various other legal proceedings considered typical to its businesses, including some remaining US retail
phamacy anti-trust class and individual actions outside the scope of the settlements described above and Iitigation relating to employrment,
product liability, commercial disputes, infringement of intellectual property rights and the validity of certain patents. Aithough there can be no
assurance regarding the outcome of any of the legal proceedings or investigations referred to in this Note 34 to the Financial Staternents,
AstraZeneca does not expect them to have a materially adverse effect on AstraZeneca's financial position or profitability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continiied

35 Leases

Total rentals under operating leases charged to profit and loss account were as follows:

2002 2001 2000

$m $m $m

Hire of plant and machinery 23 25 15
Other 96 76 74
119 101 89

Commitments under operating leases to pay rentals during the year following the year of these Financial Statements analysed according to the
period in which each lease expires were as follows:

Land and buildings Other assets

2002 2001 2002 2001

$m $m $m $m

Expiring within one year 5 5 11 12
Expiring in years two to five ' 25 a7 15 13
Expiring thereafter 32 25 2 2
62 67 28 27

The future minimum lease payrments under operating leases that have initial or remaininglterms in excess of one year at 31 December 2002 were

as follows:
%aﬁgg leases

$m $m
Obligations under leases comprise :
Rentals due within one year a0 94
Rentals due after more than one year
After five years from balance sheet date 94 g7
From four to five years P4 20
From three 1o four years 27 21
From two to three years 38 25
From one to two years a7 35
227 198
a7 290

The Group had no commitments (2001 $niff under finance leases at the balance sheet date which were due to commences thereatter.
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36 Statutory and other information

2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m
Statutory audit fees

KPMG Audit Plc 3.5 2.5 3.2
Others 0.1 0.1 -
3.6 26 3.2

Fees for other services
KPMG Audit Plc and associates -UK 0.4 3.2 8.9
—Worldwide 3.1 2.0 5.0
3.5 52 13.9

Non statutory audit fees paid fo KPMG Audit Pic and its associates were in relation to other assurance services $1.5m (2001 $1.8mj; taxation
$1.8m (2001 $2.1m); and other non audit services $0.2m (2001 $1.3m).

In addition to the above, in 2000 KPMG Audit Pic and its associates charged fees for other services of $8.0m that were bome by Syngenta AG in
refation to its demerger from AstraZeneca.

The charge for the statutory audit of the Company, AstraZeneca PLC, was $1,600 (2001 $1,600, 2000 $1,600). KPMG Audit Plc were sole
auditors to AstraZeneca in 2002 and 2001.

The bulk of fees for other services charged by KPMG Audit Plc and its associates (aside from the Zeneca Agrochemicals demerger and
associated restructuring work) were incurred in the éarly months of 2000, completing 1899 integration projects.

Related party transactions

The Group had no material related party transactions which might reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the users of these
Financial Statements.

Subsequent events
No significant change has occurred since the date of the annual Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

37 Company information

Company Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2002 2001
Notes $m $m

Fixed assets

Fixed assetinvestments 37 7,236 6,736
7,236 6,736

Curmrent assets

Debtors — amounts owed by subsidiaries 27,104 27,998

Total assets 34,340 34,734

Creditors due within one year : ‘

Non-trade creditors 37 (2,961) (835}
(2,961) (835)

Net current assets 24143 27,163

Total assets less current liabilities 31,379 33,809

Creditors due after more than one year

Loans —owed to subsidiaries 37 (295) (690}

Net assets 31,084 33,308

Capital and reserves

Cafled-up share capital 38 429 436

Share premium account 37 403 334

Capital redemption reserve 37 16 g

Other reserves 37 1,841 2,239

Profitandloss account 37 28,395 30,291

Shareholders’ funds - equity interests 31,084 33,309

The financial statements on pages 58 to 122 were approved by the Board of Directors pn 30 January 2003 and were signed on its behalf by:

Sir Tom McKillop Jonathan Symonds
Director Director
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37 Company information (continued}

Deferred taxation

The parent company had no deferred tax assets or liabilities (actual or potential) at 31 December 2002.

Investments in subsidiaries
Fixed asset investments Shares Loans Total
$m $m
Cost at beginning of year 6,145 591 6,736
Additions 500 - 500
Net book value at 31 December 2002 6,645 5 7,236
Net book value at 31 December 2001 6,145 591 6,736
Non-trade creditors 2002 2001
$m $m
Amounts due within one year
Short term borrowings {unsecured) 3 3
Other creditors 50 4
Amounts owed to subsidiaries 2,100 8
Dividends to Shareholders 808 82G
2,961 835
Loans — owed to subsidiaries Repayment 2002 2001
Dates $m $m
Loans {(unsecured)
US dollars
6.58% loan 2003 295 245
7.2% lpan 2023 295 295
Total loans 590 580
Loans or instaiments thereof are repayable
After five years from balance sheet date 295 295
From two to five years - -
Fromong totwoyears - 295
Total unsecured 295 530
Total due within one year 295 -
Totdl loans 590 530
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Notes to the Financial Statements contintied
37 Company information (céntinued)

Share Capital Profit

premium  redermption Other and loss 2002 2001

Reserves account reserve reserves account Total Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m
At beginning of year 334 9 2,239 30,291 32,873 32,759
Net profit for the year - - - 102 102 2,314
Dividends - - {398) (808) {1,206) {1,225)
Share re-purchase - 7 - {1,190} (1,183) {1,074)
Share premiums 69 - - - 69 0
Atend of year 403 16 1,841 28,395 30,655 32,873
Distributable reserves at end of year - - 443 1,614 2,057 1,623
As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Comparny has not presented! its profit and loss accournit,

At 31 December 2002 $26,781m (31 December 2001 $29,440m) of the profit and loss adcount reserve was not available for distribution, The
majority of this non-distributable amount relates to profit arising on the sale of Astra AB to @ subsidiary in 1999, which becomes distributable as
by repayment. Subsequent to the year end a further

the underlying receivable is settled in cash. During 2002, $2,659m of the profit was reali
$825m was repaid on 23 January 2003 resulting in additional distributable reserves not in
i a special reserve of $157m, arising on the redenomination of share capital in 1999,

luded in the figures above. Included in other reserves

2002 2001
Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds $m $m
Shareholders' funds at beginning of ysar 33,309 33,201
Net profit for the financial year 102 2,314
Dividends (1,206} (1,225}
Issues of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares 69 99
Re-purchase of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares {1,190} {1,080}
Net {reduction iny/addition to sharshoiders’ funds {2,225) 108
Shareholders’ funds at end of year 31,084 33,300
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38 Called-up share capital of parent company

Allotted, called-up

Authorised and fully paid

2002 2002 2001

$m $m m
Ordinary Shares ($0.25 each) 429 429 436
Unissued Ordinary Shares {$0.25 each) 171 - -
Redeemable Preference Shares (£50,000) - - -
) 600 429 436

The Redeemable Preference Shares cany limited class voting rights and no dividend rights. This class of shares is capable of redemption at par
at the option of the Comppany on the giving of seven days’ written notice to the registered holder of the shares.

The mavements in share capital during the year can be summarised as follows:
No. of shares

raiifior) $m
Al beginning of year 1,745 436
Issues of shares 2 -
Re-purchase of shares {28) (4]
At 31 December 2002 1,719 429

Share buy-back
During the year the Company purchased, and subsequently cancelled, 28,386,560 Ordinary Shares at an average price of 2785 pence per

share for a consideration, including expenses, of $1,190m, The excess of the consideration over the nominal value has been charged against the
profit and loss account reserve.

- Share schemes

Atotal 0f 1,737,401 shares were issued during the year in respect of share scnemes. Details of movements in the number of shares under option
are shown in Note 33; details of options granted to Directors are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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Principal Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates
Percentage of voting

At 31 December 2002 Country shate capital heid Principal activity
UK
AstraZenecs UK Limited England 1004 Research, production, marketing
AstraZeneca Insurance Cornpany Limited England 100  Insurance and reinsurance underwriting
AstraZeneca Treasury Limited Englend 100 Treasury
Continernital Europe
NV AstraZeneca SA Belgium 100 Marketing
ASP SA France 100 Production
AstraZeneca Phamma SA France 100 Research, production, marketing
AstraZensca GribH Genmany 100 Developrnent, production, marketing
AstraZeneca Holding GmbH Germany 100 Produgtion, marketing
AstraZeneca SpA ftaly 100 Production, marketing
AstraZeneca Farmaceutica Spain SA Spain 100 Production, marketing
AstraZeneca AB Sweden 100 Research and development,

production, marketing
AstraTech AB Sweden 100 Research and development,

production, marketing :
AstraZeneca BV The Netherlands 100 Marketing
The Americas
AstraZeneca do Brasil  tda. Brazi 100 Production, marketing
AstraZenaca Canadainc. Canada 100 Research, production, marketing
IPR Phamaceuticals Inc. Fuerto Rico 100 Development, production, marketing
AstraZenecaLP us a9 Development, production, marketing
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals LP us 100 Development, production, marketing
Salick Health Care, Inc. us 100 Provision of disease-specific

hegdlthcare services

Zeneca Holdings Inc. us 100 Production, marketing
Asia, Africa & Australasia
AstraZeneca Pty Limited Australia 100 Research, production, marketing
AstraZeneca Pharmaceutical Co., Limited China 100 Production, marketing
AstraZeneca Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 100 Production
AstraZeneca KK Japan 80 Production, marketing
# shares held directly
The companies and other entities listed above are those whose results or financial position principally affected the figures showniin the Group's
annual financial statements. A fulllist of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will be annexed to the Company's next annual return filed with

the Registrar of Companies. The country of registration or incorporation is stated alpngside each company. The accounting dates of principal
subsidiaries and associates are 31 December, except for Salick Health Care, Inc. which is 30 Novernber. AstraZeneca operates through 235
subsidiary companies worldwide. Products are manufactured in some 20 countries worldwide and are sold in over 100 countriss,
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Additional Information for US Investors

Differences between UK and US
accounting principles

The accompanying consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report are
prepared in accordance with UK GAAR,
Certain significant differences between UK
GAAP and US GAAP which affect
AstraZeneca's net income and shareholders’
equity are set out below.

Purchase accounting adjustments

Under UK GAAP the merger of Astra and
Zenecawas accounted for as a ‘'merger of
equals' {pooling-of-interests). Under US
GAAP the merger was accounted for as the
acquisition of Astra by Zeneca using
‘purchase accounting’. Under purchase
accounting, the cost of the investment is
calculated at the market value of the shares
issued together with other incidental costs
and the assets and liabilities of the acquired
entity are recorded at fair value. As aresutlt of
the fair value exercise, increases in the values
of Astra’s tangible fixed assets and inventory
were recognised and values attributed to their
in-process research and development,
existing products and assembled work force,
together with appropriate deferred taxation
effects. The difference between the cost of
investment and the fair value of the assets
and liabilities of Astra was recorded as
goodwill. The amount allocated to in-process
research and development was, as required
by US GAAR expensedimmediately inthe
first reporting period after the business
combination. Fair value adjustments to the
recorded amount of inventory were expensed
in the period the inventory was utiised.
Additional amortisation and depreciation have
also been recorded in respect of the fair value
adjustrents to tangible and intangible assets
and the resufting goodwill.

In the consolidated financial statements
prepared under UK GAAP, goodwill arising on
acquisitions made prior to 1 January 1998
accounted for under the purchase method
has been eliminated against shareholders’
equity. Under the requirements of UK
Financial Reporting Standard 10 ‘Goodwill
and Intangible Assets’, goodwiil on
acquisitions made after 1 Janiary 1908is
capitalised and amortised over its estimated
useful life which is generally presumed not to
exceed 20 years. UK GAAP requires that on
subsequent disposal or termination of a
previously acquired business, any goodwill
previously taken directly to shareholders’
equity is then chargedin the income
statement against the profit or loss on
disposal or termination. Up until 1 January

2002, under US GAAP, goodwill was required
to be capitalised and amortised. Now, instead
of being amortised, goodwil is tested
annually for impairment. Armortisation
charged under UK GAAP is added backin
the reconciliation of net incorne. The
intangible recognised as assembled
waorkforce has been reclassified as goodwil.

identifiable intangible assets, which principally
include patents, 'know-how’ and product
registrations, are amortised over their
estimated useful lives which vary between 5
years and 20 years with a weighted average
lite of approximately 13 years.

At 31 December 2002 and 2001,
shareholders’ equity includes capitafised
goodwil of $13,600m and $12,168m
respectively (net of amortisation and
impairment of $2,383m and $2,180m) and
capitalised identifiable intangible assets of
$9,433m and $9,789m respectively (net of
amortisation and impairment of $4,566m and
$3,475m). Goodwill on businesses disposed
ofis ¢charged to the gain or loss on disposal.

On disposal of a business, the gain or loss
under US GAAP may differ from thatunder .
UK GAAP due principally to goodwill
capitalised and amortised, together with the
appropriate share of other differences
between UK and US accounting principles
recognised previousty.

Capitalisation of interest

AstraZeneca does not capitalise interest in its
financial statements. US GAAP requires
interest incurred as part of the cost of
constructing fixed assets to be capitalised
and amortised over the life of the asset.

Dividends

Under UK GAAP Ordinary Share dividends
proposed are provided for in the yearin
respect of which they are recommended by
the Board of Directors for approval by the
shareholders. Under US GAAP such
dividends are not provided for until declared
by the Board.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided on a full liability
basis under US GAAP, which permits
deferred tax assets o be recognised if their
redlisation is considerad to be more likely than
not. Under curment UK GAAP, full provisionis
also made although there are a number of
different bases on which this calculation is
made, eg rolled over capital gains.

Additional information for LIS Investors
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Pension and post-retirement benefits
There are four main differences between
current UK GAAP and US GAAPIn
accounting for pension costs:

) US GAAP requires measurements of plan
assets and obligations to be made as at
the date of the financial statements ora
date not more than three months prior to
that date. Under UK GAAP, calculations
may be based on the results of the fatest
actuarial valuation;

iy US GAAP mandates a particular actuarial
method — the projected unit credit
method — and requires that each
significant assumption necessary to
determine annual pension cost reflects
best estimates solely with regard to that
individual assumption. UK GAAP does
notmandate a particular method, but
requires that the method and
assumptions taken as a whole should be
compatible and lead to the actuary’s best
estimate of the cost of providing the
benefits promised;

(i} underUS GAAP, a negative pension cost
rmiay arise where a significant
unrecognised net asset or gain exists at
the time of implementation. This is
required to be amortised on a straight-line
basis aver the average remaining service
period of employees, Under UK GAAR
AstraZeneca’s policy is not to recognise
pension credits in its financial statements
unless a refund of, or reductionin,
contributions is likely; and

{v) under US GAAR, a minimum pension
liability is recognised through other
comprehensive income in certain
circumnstances when there is a deficit of
plan assets relative to the projected
benefits obligation. Under UK GAAP,
there is no such requirement.
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Differences between UK and US
accounting principles (continued)

Restructuring costs

Under UK GAAP, provisions are made for
restructuring costs once a detailed formal
planis in place and valid expectations have
been raised in those affected that the
restructuring will be carried out, US GAAP
requires & number of specific criteria to be
met before such costs can be recognised as
an expense. Among these are the
requirements that the costs incurred are
Incremental to other costs incurred by the
company, or represent amounts to be
incurred under contractual obligations which
are not asscciated with or do not benefit
activities that will be continued. Also, all
significant actions arising from a restructuring
and their completion dates must be identified
by the balance sheet date. To the extent that
restructuring costs are related to the activities
of the acquired company, S GAAP allows
them to be recognised as a liability upon
acquisition.

Software costs

Under UK GAAP, AstraZeneca capitalises
certain defined software costs, Under US
GAAP scftware costs are generally
capitalised and amortised over three to five
years,

Foreign exchange

Under UK GAAP, unrealised gains and losses
on foreign currency transactions to hedge
anticipated, but not firmly committed, foreign
currency transactions may be deferred and
accounted for at the same time as the
anticipated transactions. Under US GAAP
such deferral is not permitted exceptin
certain defined circumstances.

Derivative instruments and hedging
activities

Uinder US GAAP, all derivative instruments
should be recognised as assets or liabilities in
the balance sheet at fair value. Gains and
losses are recognised in net income unless
they are regarded as hedges. Under UK
GAAR these instruments are measured at
cost and gains or losses deferred until the
underlying transactions aceour.,

Deferred income

Under UK GAAP, profits or losses from the
sale of product related intangible assets are
classified in other operating income and are
stated after taking account of product
disposal costs and costs of mincr
outstanding obligations. Under US GAAP,
such profits are deferred and recognised in

AstraZeneca Annual Report and Form 20-F 2002
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the income statement in subsequent periods
until alf disposal obligations and
commitrnents have been completed.

Current assets and liabilities
In the Group's financial statements prepared
under UK GAAP, no cost is accrued fof the
share options awarded to employess Under
the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Op
Scheme, the AstraZeneca Share Optign
Pian, and the AstraZeneca Savings-Related
Share Option Scheme as the exercise price is
equivalent to the market value at the dite of
grant. Under US GAAP the costis calqulated
as the difference between the option price
and the market price at the date of grant or,
for variable plans, at the end of the repgrting
period (urtil measurement date). Under the
requirements of APB Opinion No. 25 gny
compensation cost would be amortisgd over
the period fror the date the options arp
granted to the date they are first exercigable.
Under US GAAP in the netincome
reconciliation, the Group has adjustedifor
stock compensation costs and calculgted
under APB Opinion No. 25.

Statement of cash flows: Basis of

preparation

AstraZeneca’s Statement of Group Cgsh
Flow is prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Financial Reporting Stand

argl 1
{Revised 1996} (‘FRS 1'), whose chijegtive

SFAS No. 95, 'Staterment of Cash Flo
The principal differences between the

oninvestments and sesvicing of finange; ()

investment; (f) acquisitions and dispo
dividends paid to sharehclders; ()

repayable on dermand, less overdrafty

repayable on demand; and liquid rescurces
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comprise current asset investments held as
readily disposable stores of value, Under
SFAS No. 95 cash equivalents, comprising
short term highly liquid investrments, generally
with original maturities of three months or less,
are grouped together with cash; short term
borrowings repayable on demand would not
be included within cash and cash equivalents
and movernents on those borrowings would
beincluded in financing activities.

New accounting standards adopted
Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards
SFAS No. 141 '‘Business Combinations’ and
SFAS No. 142 ‘Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets’ were issued inJuly 2001 and are
effective for accounting periods commencing
onor after 15 December 2001. Under SFAS
No. 141, all business combinations intiated
after 30 June 2001 must be accounted for
using the purchase method. The pooling of
interest method is nolonger permitted.
Intangible assets anising on acquisitions are
required to be amortised to residual values
over their estimated useful lives unless they
are regarded as having indefinite useful lives,
inwhich case they are tested annually for
impaimnent. Goodwill, arising ona
combination of business, is tested for
impalmment annualty in lieu of amortisation.
SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and
intangible assets acquired prior to 1 July 2001
should continue to be amortised and tested
for impalmnent until the adoption of the
standard. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142 an
impairrnent test must be carried cut on all
intangible assets with indefinite useful iives
and goodwill. Any impairment loss identified
on the date of adoption of SFAS No. 142
should be accounted for as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle.

At the same time, the estimated useful ives
of amortised intangible assets must be
reviewed.

Adoption of these new accounting standards
has resuited in an estimated increase innet
income of $755m (including amortisation
charged under UK GAAP of $55m). Initial
adoption of SFAS No. 142 did not resultinan
impairment charge, nor was there any
impairment at the subseguent annual test.
Had goodwil not been amortised in 2001, net
income would have increased from $1.397m
to $2,125m (2000 $865mto $1,716m) witha
comespending increase in basic and diluted
eamings per share rom $0.77 to $1.21 (2000
$0.49 to $0.97). No changes were made ta
estimated useful lives of intangible assets.

SFAS No. 144 ‘Accounting for the
Impaiment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets’
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addresses financial accounting and reparting
for the impairment or disposal of long-lived
assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121,
‘Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets tobe
Disposed of' and the accounting and
reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30,
'Reporting the Resutts of Operations —
Reporting the Effects of Disposal ofa
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary,
Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions’, for the disposal of a
segment of a business. it is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 15
Decermber 2001. The adoption of SFAS No.
144 did not have a material effect.

New accounting standards not yet
adopted

SFAS No. 143 *Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligation’ addresses the
accounting and reporting for obligations
associated with the retirement of long-lived
assets and the associated asset refirement
costs. Itis effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 15 June 2002. The
adoption of SFAS No. 143 is not expected
tohave a material effect.

SFAS No. 146 *Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities',
issued on 30 July 2002 requires costs
associated with exit or disposal activities to be
recognised when the costs are incurred
rather than at the date of commitment to an
exit or disposal plan. The provisions are
effective for disposals intialised after 31
Decermber 2002 and restatement of prior
periods is not required, As SFAS No, 146 may
apply to future activities which are not
currentty envisaged it is not possible to
assesstheimpact of SFAS

No. 146,

SFAS No. 148 ‘Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure —
an amendrment of FASE Statement No. 123" -
permits two additional transition methods for
entities that adopt the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation. The Staterent also
requires new disclosures about the ramp-up
effact of stock-hased employee
compensation on reported resuits and that
those effects be disclosed more prominentty
by specifying the form, content and iocation
of those disclosures. The transition guidance
and annual disclosure provisions of SFAS Nao.
148 are effective for fiscal years ending after
15 December 2002. AstraZeneca has not yet
determined whether it will adopt the transition
provisions of SFAS No. 148,
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Additional Information for US Investors continued

Additional information for US Investors

Differences between UK and LS accounting principles {continued)

Introduction

As aresult of the significant difference between the UK GAAP and US GAAP treatment ¢f the combination of Astra and Zeneca in the year of
acquisition, and in the results of preceding periods, condensed statements of operations and cash flow under US GAAP have been prepared for

the benefit of US investors.

The following is a summary of the material adjustments to net income and shareholders’

equity which would have been required if US GAAF had
been applied instead of UK GAAP. As noted on page 62, 2001 and 2000 net income angt shareholders' equity under UK GAAP have been
restated under FRS19 - Deferred Tax. On this basis the deferved tax adjustment below ds been restated for those years.

Netincome 2002 2001 2000
$m $m gm

Net incorme, as shown in the consolidated statements
ofincome before exceptional itemns {restated) 3,186 3,044 2,858
Exceptional items after tax (350) (138 (681)
Netincome for the period under UK GAAP (restated) 2,836 2,906 2,277
Adjustments to conform to US GAAP
Purchase accounting adjustments (including goodwill and intangibles)

Deemed acquisition of Astra

Amortisation and other acquisition adjustments {864) {1,514} (1,756)

Others 55 - (20)
Capitalisation, less disposals and armortisation of interest 46 57 45
Deferred taxation

On fair values of Astra 239 249 284

Others (restated) (99) (198) 115
Pension expense {50) B33 {50}
Post-retirerment benefits/plan amendment 4 4 4
Software costs (46) (10) 98
Restructuring costs - 22 @n
Share based compensation 33 1] 33
Fair value of derivative financial instruments 93 18 -
Deferred income recognition 61 (75) -
Unrealised losses on foreign exchange and others {1} (10) &)
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting policy 2,307 1,365 865
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy, net of tax, on adoption of SFAS No 133 - 32 -
Net income in accordance with US GAAP 2,307 1,397 865
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

US GAAP Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

2002 2001 2000
For the years ended 31 December $m $m $m
Sales 17,841 16,222 15,683
Cost of sales {4,520) {4,198} {3,960)
Distribution costs (141) (122) (210)
Research and development {3,069) (2,687) (2.620)
Selling, general and administrative expenses {6,165) (5,219) {4,867)
Acquisition related costs - (224) 419
Amortisation of intangibles and goodwill {1,052) (1,769) (2.043)
Cther incorme 308 283 223
Operating income 3,202 2,286 1,693
Netinterest income 140 188 183
Income from continuing operations before taxation 3,342 2,474 1,876
Taxes on income from continuing operations {1,035} (1,108} (969)
Net income from continuing operations 2,307 1,365 907
Discontinued operations:

Net income from discontinued operations - - {42)
Net income before cumulative effect of change in accounting policy 2,307 1,365 865
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy on adoption of SFAS No 133 - 32 -
Net income for the year 2,307 1,397 865
Weighted average number of $0.25 Ordinary Shares
inissue {millions of shares) 1,733 1,758 1,768
Dilutive impact of share options outstanding {rilions of shares) 2 3 2
Diluted weighted average number of $0.25 Ordinary Shares
inaccordance with US GAAP (millioris of shares) 1,735 1,761 1,770
Netincome per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS before change
in accounting policy in accordance with US GAAP - basic and diluted ($) $1.33 $0.77 $0.49
Netincorme per $0,25 Ordinary Share and ADS after change in
accounting policy in accordance with US GAAP - basic and diluted ($) $1.33 $0.79 $0.49

2002 2001 2000
Net income from continuing operations per $0.25 Crdinary Share and ADS
in accordance with US GAAP- basic and diluted ($) $1.33 $0.79 $0.51
Net koss from discontinued operations per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS
in accordance with US GAAP-basic and diuted ($) - ~ ($0.02)

The dividend in specie in 2000 in respect of the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals under US GAAP amountad to $836m, after realised
exchange gains on the translation of foreign currency financial statements of $297m,

As noted on page 62, cash settiement discounts have been reclassified from cost of sales to sales. Comparative information for 2001 and 2000
has also been reclassified for consistency of presentation.
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Differences hetween UK and US accounting principles (continued)
US GAAP Statement of Comprehensive Income

2002 2001 2000
Forthe years ended 31 December $m Sm $m
Net income for the year 2,307 1,397 865
Exchange gains/{losses) net of tax 2,919 {1,473) {2,184
Exchange realised on demerger of Zeneca Agrochernicals - ~ (297)
Other moverments (73) - 2
Total Comprehensive Income 5,153 (76) {1.618)

Other movements in 2002 include the recognition of a minirnum liability under SFAS 87 ¢

The cumulative exchange gains and losses (net of tax) on the translation of foreign curres
the following note:

of $45m.

hey financial staterments under US GAAP ara set outin

2002 2000 2000
Forthe years ended 31 December $m $m $m
Balance at 1 January (4,318) (2,845) (364)
Movernent in year 2,919 {1,473) (2,481)
Balance at 31 December (1,399) (4,318) (2,845)

Stock compensation
in the Group's financial statements prepared under UK GAAP, no costis accrued for the
1824 Executive Share Option Scheme, the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan, and the Ast]
exercise price is equivalent to the market value at the date of grant. Under US GAAP the
price and the market price at the date of grant or, for variable plans, at the end of the repg
requirerments of APB Opinion No. 25 any compensation cost would be amortised over t
date they are first exercisable. Under US GAAP in the net income recongifiation, the Groy
calculated under APB Opinion No 25, SFAS No.123 sets out an alternative methodology
fair valua at grant date. Had the Group adopted this methoddlogy, the incremental effect

share options awarded to empioyees under the Zeneca
raZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme as the
bost is calculated as the difference between the option
rting period {until measurement date). Under the

rpe period from the date the options are granted to the

b has adjusted for stock compensation costs as
for recognising the compensation cost based on the
bn netincome under US GAAPR is shown below.

2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m
Netincome under US GAAP as reported 2,307 1,397 865
Compensation cost {after adjusting for APB 25 credit of $33m) (155) ) {46
Pro forma netincome 2,152 1,321 819
Pro forma net income per $0.25 Qrdinary Share and ADS in accordance with US GAAP
{basic and diluted).
Asreported ($) $1.33 $0.79 $0.49
Proforma ($) $1.24 $0.75 $0.46

The fair value of options granted is estimated, based on the stock price at the grant date,
following assumptions:

Lising the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the

2002 2001 2000
Dividend yield 1.6% 1.5% 2.0%
Expected volatility 30.0% 200% 20.0%
Risk-free interest rate 5.2% 4.2% 5.9%
Expecied fives: 1994 Scheme - -  B0years
Expocted livee: AstraZeneca Sharg Option Plan 8.0 years 8.0 years 6.0 years
Expected fives: SAYE Scheme 4.3years 4.3 years 4.6years

Inthe initial phase-in period, the effects of applying SFAS No.123 for disclosing compensgtion cost may not be representative of the effects on

pro forma net income and earnings per share for future years.
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles {continued)

Pension and post-retirement benefits

For the purposes of US GAAR, the pension costs of the miajor UK retirement plan and of the retirement plans of the major non-UK subsidianes
have been restated in the following tables in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 132. These plans comprise a substantial portion of
the actuarial liabilities of all AstraZeneca retirement plans. The changes in projected benefit abligations, plan assets and details of the funded
status of these retirement plans, together with the changes in the accumulated other post-retirernent benefit obligations, under SFAS No. 132

are as follows:
Other post-retirement
Pension benefits benefits
Change in projected benefit obligation 002 2001 2002 2001
$m $m $m $m
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 4,337 4,188 205 197
Service cost 114 102 8 7
interest cost 263 243 14 14
Participant contributions 18 17 - -
Plan amendments ~ (11) - -
Actuarial {gain)loss 80 75 23 {1
Special termination benefits 12 19 - -
Settliement and curtailment - - (24) -
Benefits paid (206) (198) (19) (14)
Exchange 408 (98) 3 2
Benefit obligation at end of year 5,026 4,337 210 205
Other post-retirement
Pension benefits benefits
Change in plan assets 2002 2001 2002 2001
$m $m $m $m
Fair value at 1 January 3,753 3,803 - -
Actyal retum on plan assets (142) a5 (16) -
Group contribution 284 170 161 -
Participant contributions 18 17 - -
Settiernent and curtailment - - - -
Benefits paid {205} {(198) {12} -
Exchange 330 (84) - ~
Fair vatue of plan assets at end of year 4,038 3,753 133 ~
Funded status of plans (088) (584) ) (205}
Unrecognised net loss/{profit) 938 396 - ~
Prior service cost not recognised 29 35 - -
Unrecognised net obligation on implementation 3 ¢} - -
(18) (147) &7 (205)
Adjustrments to recognise minimum liabiity
intangible assets (45) - - -
Accurmulated other comprehensive income {45) - - -
Accrued benefit liability (108) (147) 7 (208)
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Additional Information for US Investors gontinued

Differences between UK and US accounting principtes (continued)

At 31 Decermber 2002, the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation
retiremerit plans above with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets w)
$73m and $nil) respectively,

Assumed discount rates and rates of increase in rernuneration used in calculating the
of return on plan assets vary according to the economic conditions of the country in whi
average rates used for caiculation of year end benefit obligations and forecast benefit
obligations for SFAS No. 132 purposes were as follows:

and fair value of the plan assets inrespect of the
pre $4,246m, $3,557m and $3,296m, (2001 $97m,

h the retirernent plans are situated. The weighted

Dijected benefit obligations together with long term rates

st in the riain retirenent pians and other benefit

Pension benefits QOther post-retirement benefits
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
% % % % % %
Discourt rate 58 6.0 5.6 6.6 7.1 74
Long term rate of increase in remuneration 4.1 4.4 4.4 4.8 r/a r/a
Expected long term return on assets 6.4 8.5 6.2 7.8 n/a n/a
The Group has assumed a long term rate of increase in healthcare costs of 11.0%, reduging to 5.0%.
Persion benefits Other post-retirement benefits
2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Net pericdic cost :
Service cost — present value of benefits
accruing during the year 114 102 152 8 7 10
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 263 243 301 14 14 17
Expected returm on assets (263} (242) (322) - - -
Net amortisation and deferral 28 39 46 {1} 2} (1)
Net periodic cost forthe year 142 142 177 21 19 26
Itis estimated that a 1 percentage point change in the weighted average healthcare costs trend would have the following effects on
the accurnulated benefit obligation and net periodic cost at 31 December 2002:
1 percentage point
ncrease decrease
$m $m
Accumulated benefit obligation 10 ©
Net periodic cost 2 1]
Taxation
2002 2001 2000
Years ended 31 December $m $m $m
Taxes on income from continuing operations
UK taxation
Corporation tax 165 147 79
Double taxation refief 4] ) {42)
Deferred 40 10 (27}
Overseas taxation
QOverseas taxes 921 831 856
Deferred taxation (84) 125 -
Share of taxation of joint verilures and associates - - 3
Taxes on income from continuing operations 1,035 1,109 969
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

The table below reconciles the UK statutory tax charge to the Group’s actual charge on income from continuing operations.

2002 2001 2000

Years ended 31 December $m $m $m

Income on continuing operations 3,342 2,506 1,876

Taxation charge at UK corporation

tax rate of 30% for 2002 (30% for 2001, 30% for 2000) 1,002 751 563

Acquisition related items - 4 29
Goodwil, Advants, and Salick Health Care impaiment - 190 576

Net effect of different rates and eligible costs in other jurisdictions (21) 43) {86)
Exceptional items 105 4 19

Other (51) 203 (132)
Tax on income from continuing operations 1,035 1,109 969

I 2002, claims amotinting to $43m (2001 $109m) for tax relief arising as a result of a restructuring of the AMI joint veriture in 1998 were made.
Under US GAAF, these relists are adjusted against the goodwill arising on the restructuring and inchuded in other adjustments.

Shareholders’ equity 2002 2001
$m $rn
Total shareholders’ equity under UK GAAP {restated) 11,172 9,586

Adjustments to conform to US GAAP
Purchase accounting adjustments (including goadwill and intangibles)

Deemed acquisition of Astra
Goodwill 12,692 11,062
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 7,707 8,139
Others 86 31
Capitafisation, iess disposals and amortisation of interest 238 192
Deferred taxation
On fair value of Astra {2,305) 2,313}
OCthers (restated) (159) ©8)
Dividend 808 820
Pension expense {271} (182}
Post-retirernent benefits/plan amendment (24) (28)
Software costs capitalised 64 110
Fair value of derivative financial instruments 99 50
Deferred incorne recognition (14) {75)
Orthers 90 58

Shareholders’ equity in accordance with US GAAP 30,183 27,402
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles {continued)

US GAAP Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2002 201 2000
Forthe years ended 31 December $m $m $m
Cash flows from operating activities 4,833 3,126 3,554
Cash flows from investing activities
Movernent in short tenm investments and fixed deposits {806) 260 608)
New fixed asset investments (1) {5) (3)
Disposal of fixed assets " 66 44 37
Acqgulisitions and disposals - (44} 740
Capital expenditure (1,608) {1,582} (1,460)
Net cash outflows frominvesting activities (2,349) {1,327) (1,294)
Net cash flow before financing 2,484 1,799 2,260
Cash flows from financing activities
Equity dividends paid (1,234) (1,236) {1,220)
Repurchase of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares (1,154) ({894) {334)
Net {decrease)increase in short tamm borrowings {13) 7 67)
Loans repaicd/new ioans (105) 28 3
Repayment of lease finance - - )
Net cash outflows fromn financing activities {2,506) {2,195} {1,620)
{Decrease)/increasein cash (22} {396) 840
Cash:
ALY January 510 08 262
(Decrease)increase in cash {22) {396) €40
Exchange movements 36 2) 8
At 31 December 524 510 908

{1) Interest paid was $96m in 2002, $84min 2001, $145min 2000.
Interest received was $142min 2002, $232min 2001, $180min 2000.

{2) Tax paid was $795min 2002, $792m in 2001, $648rm in 2000.




Entity Code
1002
1004
1005
1006
1007
1042
1013
1017
1018
1019
1020
3302
3303
3330
3348
3350
3385
3700
3915
3916
3917
3918
3919
3920
3921
3922
3923
3924
4170
4171
4181
4182
4183
4184
4185
4186
4188
4189
4190
5036
5283
5286
5301
5302
5303
5304
5305
5308
5309
5310
5313
5315
5332
5336
5339
54086
5418
5500
5501
5502
5511
5512
5514
5515
5516
5517
5518
5519
5520
5521
5524
5530
5541
5544
5545
5550
5553
5554

Legal Name

AstraZeneca UK Limited

Zeneca Limited

ZENCQ {No 6) Limited

AstraZeneca Quest Limited

Wilmington Pharmaceuticals Limited
AstraZeneca Employee Share Trust Limited
AstraZeneca Share Trust Limited

Zenco (No 8) Limited

Zence {No 9) Limited

AstraZeneca Treasury Limited

AstraZeneca US Invesiments Limited

Avlex Limited

Stuart Pharmaceuticals Limited

IC Insurance Limited

Care Laboratories Limited

Care Preducts Limited

ZENCO (No. 12} Limited

AstraZeneca China UK Limited

AYZEE 1 Limited

AYZEE 2 Limited

AYZEE 3 Limited

AYZEE 4 Limited

AYZEE 5 Limited

AYZEE 6 Limited

AYZEE 7 Limited

AYZEE 8 Limited

AYZEE 9 Limited

AYZEE 10 Limited

Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Pty Limited
J Glover Laboratories Pty Limited
AstraZeneca Superannuation Plan Pty Limited
AstraZeneca Executive Superannuation Plan Pty Limited
J Glover Distributers Pty Limited

Zeneca Australia Superannuation Pty Limited
ZENECA PHARMACEUTICALS AUSTRALIA PTY LTD
AstraZeneca Holdings Piy Limited
AstraZeneca PTY Limited

AstraZeneca Limited

ZENECA HOLDINGS AUSTRALIA PTY LTD
Comprehensive Cancer Corporation of New York inc
Zeneca Delaware Holdings Inc.

Atkemix Nine Inc.

Atkemix Ten Inc.

CCC Management Company of California, Inc.
Atkemix Twelve Inc.

Zeneca International Inc.

CCC Management Company, Inc.

The Breast Center, In¢

CCC Management Company of New York, Inc.
AstragZeneca Latin America Inc

Zeneca Ag Products Holdings lne. 11

Stauffer Management Company LLC

Stauffer Chemical Co. Canada Limited

AZ Reinsurance Limited

Arbil International Insurance Limited

Zeneca Holdings Financial Corp.

Zeneca Resins Holdings Inc.

Zeneca Holdings Inc.

Zeneca Inc.

AZ-Mont Insurance Company
Comprehensive Cancer Centers Inc.

Ushawl Inc.

OAMG, Inc.,

Salick MG, Inc,,

SHC - NY Censulting Services, Inc.,

Carlos Dominguez, M.D., FACP, Inc.,

Enrique Davilla, M.D., FACP, Inc.,

Michael A. Schwartz, MC., Inc.,

Quorn Foods Inc,

Nixon, Biaustein, Tuchman-Ratzan & Lutzky, M.D.'s, Inc.,

SHC Cancer Care LLC

Corpus Christi Holdings Inc.

Century Dialysis Corporation

Ambulatory Diagnostic Testing Services, Inc.
SHC Laboratories, Inc.

Infusx, Inc.

CCC of North Miami Beach Inc.

Logic Health Systems, Inc.

Country of Incorporation
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and VWales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Austratia

Australia

Australia

Australia

New Zealand

Australia

United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of Amaerica
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
Uinited States of America
Canada

Cayman lslands
Cayman Islands

United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America

Effective Equity %
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
51
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
160
100
160
100
100
100
51
100
4100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100



5556
5560
5561
5562
5563
5564
5587
5568
5569
5570
5603
5667
5668
68004
6005
6013
6020
6030
6078
6080
6083
6084
6085
6103
6104
6105
6108
6109
6119
6120
6125
8127
6142
6143
6145
6159
6206
6208
6209
8210
6213
6218
6219
6221
gz222
6224
6226
8227
6267
6305
6329
6332
6440
6793
6892
6893
6894
6885
6899
6900
6901
65802
6503
6904
6905
6906
6908
6909
6910
6911
6912
6913
6914
6916
6917
6918
6919
6920
6921

Salicknet Inc.

Salick Health Care, Inc.

Astra U.S. Holdings Corporation
Astra USA, Inc.

AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals, LP
AstraZeneaca, LP

Astra Tech Ltd

Astra Tech Oy

AstraZeneca, S.A. de C.V.

Astra Tech, lnc.

Zeneca Pharma Inc,

Astra-Thai Holdings

AstraZeneca Canada Inc.,
Labaratorio Lailan, S.A.
Labaratorio Epsilon, S.A.
AstraZeneca Holding GmbH
AstraZeneca B.V.

Zeneca Halia S.r.l.

STUART - PRODUTOS FARMACEUTICOS, LDA
Laboratoric Tau S.A.

Laboratoric Beta, S.A.
Laborataric lcaro SA

Laboratorio Cdin, S.A.
AstraZeneca GmbH
Rhein-Pharma Arzneimittelwerk GmbH
Ivamed GmbH

Pharma-Stern GmbH

Premed Arzneimittel GmbH
AstraZeneca S.A.

AstraZeneca Reims SAS
AstraZeneca SpA

NV AstraZeneca S5A

AstraZeneca AS

Zeneca AB

AstraZeneca Helding AktieBolag
AstraZeneca Farmaceutica Holding Spain SA
AstraZeneca Zeta B.V.
AstraZeneca Jota B.V.
AstraZeneca Rho B.V.
AstraZeneca Sigma B.V.
AstraZeneca Omega BV,

Stuart Pharma AB

AstraZeneca Farmaceutica Spain S.A.
AstraZeneca Gamma B.V.
AstraZeneca Theta B.V.
AstraZeneca Lambda B.V.
AstraZeneca Hotdings B.V.
AstraZeneca Pi B.V.

AstraZeneca Holdings A/S
AstraZeneca Osterreich GmbH
AstraZeneca Sp. z.0.0.

Novastra

AstraZeneca AG

AstraZeneca Sverige AB
AstraZeneca AB

Aktiebolaget Rila

Hassle Research Aktiebolag
Astra Biotech AB

Astra Nordic AB

Swedish Graft Technique Aktiebolag
Aktiebotaget Medena

Astra Tech international Aktiebolag
Crafon Aktiebolag

Imeco Aktiebolag

Astra Middle East AB

Durapharm Aktieholag
Aktiebolaget Astromen

Astra Fondaktiebolag
AstraZeneca International Holdings AB
Astra Pharma AB

AstraZeneca Development AB
Aktiebclaget Hassle

Aktiebolaget Draco

Astra Tech GmbH

Astra Pharmaceuticals AB

Astra Tech Aktiebolag

Astra Export & Trading AB

Hassle Lakemedel Aktiebolag
Tika Lakemedel Aktiebolag

United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
England and Wales
Finland

Mexico

United States of America
United States of America
United States of America
Canada

Spain

Spain

Germany

HOLLAND

italy

Partugal

Spain

Spain

Spain

Spain

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

France

FRANCE

Italy

Belgium

Norway

Sweden

Sweden

Spain

HOLLAND

HOLLAND

HOLLAND

HOLLAND

HOLLAND

Sweden

Spain

HOLLAND

HOLLAND

HOLLAND

HOLLAND

HQOLLAND

Denmark

Austria

Poland

Portugal

Switzerland

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Germany

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

100
100
100
100
100
g9

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100



6922
6923
6925
6932
6933
6938
5939
6941
6943
6944
6945
6959
6950
6962
6964
6965
6970
6971
6972
6974
6976
6977
6978
6979
6980
6982
6983
6984
6985
6986
6988
6989
6990
6995
£996
6999
717
7120
7137
7161
7170
7176
7194
7262
7264
7270
7275
7290
7418
7318
7326
7327
7530
7333
7435
7335
7344
7348
7357
7358
7378
7400
7405
7421
7560
8007
8035
8044
8082
8094
8097
8098
8907
8910
8911
8913
5914
8915

Draco Lakemedel Aktiebolag

Astra Lakemedel AB

Symbicom Aktiebolag

Astra Tech AB

Astra Tech BV,

Carl Schneider ApS

Astra Tech A/S

AstraZeneca Finance SAS

AstraZeneca Czech Republic, s.r.o.

Astra Tech France SAS

AstraZeneca Kft

Astra Tech

AstraZeneca Produtos Farmaceuticos Lda
Astra Tech S.A.

Astra Alpha Produtos Farmaceuticos Lda
Zeneca Eplison Farmaceuticos Lda
Biothera SA

AstraZeneca S.A.

Astra Tech italy SpA

Simesa SpA

AstraZeneca Luxembourg SA

N.V. Vitalpharma S.A.

N.V. Astra Pharmaceuticals S.A.

ASP SA,

AstraZeneca Monts S.A.

AstraZeneca Holding France SAS
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals {Ireland) Limited
Astra Pharmaceuticals Limited
AstraPharm

AstraZeneca Continent B.V.,

AstraZeneca Alpha B.V.

Copthorne AG

AstraZeneca Management Resources AG
AstraZeneca OY.

DuraNor AS,

AstraZeneca A/S

AstraZeneca do Brasil Limitada
AstraZeneca Venezuela SA

IPR. Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

AstraZeneca Farmaceutica Chite Limitada
AstraZaeneca Colombia S.A.

AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Malaysia) SDN BHD
AstraZeneca SA

AstraZeneca Pharma India Limited
AstraZeneca India Private Limited
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Phils.) Inc,,
AstraZeneca KK

Astra Pharmaceuticals Pakistan (Private) Limited
AstraZeneca Singapore Pte Limited
AstraZeneca Pharmaceutical Co., Limited.
AstraZeneca Hong Kong Limited
AstraZeneca Korea Limited
ASTRAZENECA TAMWVAN LIMITED
AstraZeneca Japan Limited

AstraZeneca llac Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S.
P.T. AstraZeneca Indonesia

AstraZeneca China Limited

Zeneca Pharma Asiatic Limited

Zeneca llac Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S.
AstraZenaca {Thailand) Limited

Zeneca Sina-pharm Development Consuiting Company Limited
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Pty) Limited
Astra Pharmaceuticals (Pty) Limited
Stuart Pharmaceuticals (South Africa) (Pty) Limited
AstraZeneca S.A.

2eneca Pharmaceuticals (Mumber 2} Limited
1.C. Insurance Holdings Limited
AstraZeneca Insurance Company Limited
Marlow Foods Limited

ZENGCQ {No. 11) Limited

AstraZeneca Investments Limited
AstraZeneca Nominees Limited

Zeneca Wilmington Inc.

Zeneca Finance (Netherlands) Company
AstraZeneca Finance Limited

Zeneca Holdings Limited

Zeneca Bioscience Limited

Stauffer Chemical Company Trust

Sweden

Sweden

Sweden

Norway

HOLLAND
Denmark

Cenmark

France
Czech-Republic
France

Hungary

Austria

Portugal

Spain

Foriugal

Portugal

Belgium

Greece

Italy

Italy

Luxembourg
Belgium

Belgium

France

France

France

Republic of reland
England and Wales
England and Wales
HGLLAND
HOLLAND
Switzerand
Switzerand

Finland

Norway

Denmark

Brazil

Venezuela

Puerto Rico

Chile

Colombia

Malaysia

Uruguay

India

India

Philippines

Japan

Pakistan
Singapare

China - People's Republic of China
Hang Kong

South Korea
Taiwan, Republic of China
England and Wales
Turkey

{ndocnesia

Hong Kong
Thailand

Turkey

Thailand

China - Pecple's Republic of China
South Africa

South Africa

South Africa
Argentina

England and Wales
Engiand and Wales
England and VWales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
United States of America
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
United States of America

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
160
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
91.48
100
100
80
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
400
95
100
100
100
100
75
100
100
100
99.9
100
51
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100




